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Mission
HKCAAVQ safeguards the credibility of
qualifications under the Qualifications
Framework and enhances the quality of
education and training in Hong Kong through
provision of efficient and effective quality
assurance services.
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HKCAAVQ aims to be a nationally and globally
recognised independent quality assurance
body in education and training, dedicated to
high quality accreditation, assessment and
consultancy services.
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This annual report covers the reporting year from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 in the text and the financial report unless stated otherwise.
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ighlights of the Year

22 April 2016
20164 A 22 H

The MTR Academy’s first
programme accredited
BRESREERERTIEER

Established after the Chief Executive’s
Policy Address 2014, the MTR
Academy has sought HKCAAVQ's
accreditation of its first Advanced
Diploma in Railway Engineering
programme at QF Level 4.

BEEBRNITHREE 22014 F
B ERKIL - ZBREETE
BETHE  HAEERTRESHUERE
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“Institutional Review Manual for Private
University Title” published
BHEERTEFMRAILREBEURF)D

Following the Government’s “Roadmap for Becoming a
Private University” and with the feedback collected from
key stakeholders, HKCAAVQ developed and published the
Institutional Review (IR) Manual for Private University Title.

More details can be found here: https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/
en/news/publication-of-institutional-review-manual-for-private-
university-title

T RIEREN A [ RIS RENRGRE | RE &
MR EREGERNER - §ilFE REBEM B RTEF M
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HIBEBREA TNHEE © https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/zh/

news/publication-of-institutional-review-manual-for-private-
university-title

15 September 2016
20169 A 15H
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Highlights of the Year FEEBI&

HKCAAVQ signed Memorandum of Understanding
with ASQA
FERERNFEREERESHERTH

HKCAAVQ and the Australian Skills Quality Authority (ASQA)
entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU). ASQA
is the national regulator for Australia’s vocational education
and training (VET) sector, and the first VET regulator/quality
assurance agency with which HKCAAVQ enters into a MoU.

More details can be found here: https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/
en/news/hkcaavg-builds-partnership-with-the-australian-skills-

quality-authority

ST BRI mE E R B E TS o MM AEm
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ﬁé?ﬂ%%%ﬁ%éf’ﬂ%%ﬁE@H&%%&E%ﬁ/éﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%

HIEBBENTHE © https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/zh/
news/hkcaavg-builds-partnership-with-the-australian-skills-
quality-authority

1 -3 November 2016
2016511 B 1-3 H

18 October 2016
201610 H18 H

Indonesia APEC Quality Assurance in
Online Education Workshop: presentation
titled “Good practice in Online Programme
Accreditation”
FERRRBOCHFAZARBESFEAME
MOREHEEERRBIEY  EEXESR
[PHRREIENERBREEX(ERE]

The APEC Quality Assurance in Online Education
workshop was hosted by the Department of
Education and Training, Australian Government and
Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation (APEC) on 1-3
November 2016 in Bali, Indonesia.

Presentations were made by Prof Pong Tin-chuen (Professor of Computer Science and Engineering of HKUST and HKCAAVQ
Council member) and Dr Joe Hong (Registrar (Academic Accreditation and Assessment) of HKCAAVQ) in respect of
accreditation of online learning programmes.

B S A B & (EAE RS SORMNHE KIS B A B ERRE ERRIFIIEY - R20165F 11 A1-3REHER
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Highlights of the Year EEB%¥

17 November 2016
201611 817 H

QESS-funded project: CAT database project

kicked off

FERE[EXREAXESE | EPRRES RBRR

BEHPRERERE

Conference on Enhancing Student Learning
Experience (co-organised with FSTE)

HRESSHERBANERRASLETRR

HKCAAVQ and the Federation for Self-financing Tertiary
Education (FSTE) jointly organised a conference on the
topic ‘Enhancing the student learming experience’ on 17
November 2016.

More details can be found here: https://www.hkcaavg.edu.
hk/en/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-
learning-experience
FEREBESSHUEHBESENR2016F 11 A17
HEpez  TER [IEASEEEER] -
FI5BBEATHE © nttps://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/
zh/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-
learning-experience

Commencing from November 2016

H2016 511 ABA

Funded by the Government’s Quality Enhancement Support Scheme, the project was launched to create
a centralised database to capture Credit Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) information and articulation

arrangements on the Qualifications Register (QR).

AERE [ERRI RS B NEREMATE  RAZSRBEREBRHREHNENIER

B o

Accreditation ® Assessment e Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register



https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-learning-experience
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-learning-experience
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/en/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-learning-experience
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/zh/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-learning-experience
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/zh/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-learning-experience
https://www.hkcaavq.edu.hk/zh/events/joint-conference-on-enhancing-the-student-learning-experience

Highlights of the Year FEEBI&

HKCAAVQ joined Cross-border Quality EEESEHE]
Assurance Network Cross-border Higher Educaty

. = & «@mdah
FERMABESSHEEERERERGES il "'ﬂ'

4
i

HKCAAVQ joined the Cross-border Quality Assurance
Network (CBQAN) as one of its founding members.
CBQAN was established by the China Academic
Degrees and Graduate Education Development Center
(CDGDC).

HAERMABRSSHELERERHIFEGA
B NRERIEKE o ARHRTEHE SRR EHEERP LKL

February 2017
2017524

20-21 December 2016
2016 12 5 20-21 H

Quality Assuran
Online Knowlec

QESS-funded project: QAOK launched
TEREEZRALENE | EMELHERRFR
R AR E

Funded by the Government’s Quality Enhancement
Support Scheme (QESS), HKCAAVQ launched the
Quality Assurance Online Knowledgebase (QAOK) in
February 2017 to disseminate good practices identified
from forums and workshops and the Quality Assurance
Council’s quality audits of local publicly funded
universities.

AT R B R RATBIER) - 201742 A
HHERAREE LANBE - MBERNEHERE -
THESARERRERE AT EPABETNZ
BREBHRNERBEIEEN
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Chairman’s Message

ERFS

Chairman

Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun, BBS
FE

BRIKIRIE L - BBS

Welcome to the 2016/17 HKCAAVQ Annual Report. As | look back
at the achievements we have made over the past year, | am pleased
to share with you what | consider to be the highlights of our new
initiatives taken to respond to the challenges arising from the evolving
education and training landscape.

HKCAAVQ has all along been giving our steadfast support for
the development of the Qualifications Framework (QF) since its
establishment in 2008. We are privileged to have been given a
unique role to safeguard the credibility of qualifications under the
QF which allows the public to make an informed decision about
their study choices. Since the launch of the QF, the total number of
quality assured qualifications has grown steadily and the number of
HKCAAVQ accredited qualifications has reached 4,333 by 31 March
2017, among which the vocational qualifications account for over
80%.

Accreditation ® Assessment e Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Chairman’s Message £EFES

HKCAAVQ has been supportive of the Government’s policies for
the promotion and continuous development of vocational and
professional education and training (VPET) in Hong Kong. In the past
year, we have been more proactive in approaching industry bodies
and organisations to explain to them the benefits of accreditation
and present our training services. In parallel, we are encouraged to
see that an increasing number of public entities and government
departments are recognising the importance of seeking the QF
recognition and having qualifications listed on the Qualifications
Register (QR). These public entities and government departments
are seeking HKCAAVQ’s advice and actively taking steps towards
benchmarking their training programmes against the QF standards
through accreditation. This demonstrates the value of the quality
assurance process in connecting professional industry training with
a well-developed qualifications framework to provide a structured
pathway for Hong Kong’s manpower development.

To cater for the needs of the growing number of VPET operators,
HKCAAVQ is also stepping up our training efforts and are designing
more workshops on specific topics relevant particularly to the VPET
sector such as the development of Specification of Competency
Standards (SCS) based programmes and the use of QF Credit. In
June 2017, we would also support the Education Bureau and the
Vocational Training Council in the organisation of the Vocational and
Professional Education and Training International Conference, also
known as the “VPET Connex”. We also attach great importance to
learn from good practices internationally and we are pleased to have
added the Australian regulator for vocational education, the Australian
Skills and Quality Agency, ASQA, to the list of international partners.

HKCAAVQ is mindful of its statutory roles and obligations as the
sole Accreditation Authority and QR Authority in Hong Kong. To
ensure we continue to meet our objectives and public expectations,
it is important that we keep abreast of the new developments, and
remain innovative in delivering our services. The launch of the Quality
Assurance Online Knowledgebase (QAOK) earlier this year is one
of the examples of our commitment to share knowledge with and
promote good practices among stakeholders.
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ETHENBR - £BE—F  RAE
MEBMEAEARITEERNAL - @
b PIR A RPN ER B - A KSR ARRE Y
SRR o B RIE - BIREZ NEH
WM BB AR A BB BUS B E R
BRALKEE LHINEERMNER
1 o FFERRS EEEH AELEBEME
FIREER YR MMEZRSHAESE
BT B - &K mETEEEE
RN EERBOIRE - BBTE
B MERERERR - EXEIAE
AR AN B RERIEHRE RGO
EPEHE o

MFEBESTHEEMENEE T L
- RRRAERNTE  FERMALE
FNIIE - FRISTHBET A HE AR
TR R AR AT E I TVES - Blan
BE IS ANERENERNEEE
DHEAE - fFE2017F6 A - FIHED
HERMBEINRBENREESTHE
BB a0 & (VPET Connex) ° (P& B —
MER MG ING RIRF BRI -
AFEERMRSEEAEERMNBERS
B ESE MR RN e R B 2 (ASQA) 55T
iE - KARRMERR S ER -

AERBR AT TR MEST B TR
ERMEERBERNAERERR
£ - REERERMEFEZEIERINRE
NROHE - RAAETR ARy B 8
RHEE - RISBIFTE B4 - FRPIE
HWERRE@ LANBE - EHFREREAR
BRI E D ZHE - HEBERIRER
TUHYAGE o

HKGAAQ 7



8

Chairman’s Message £EFRS

Quality education and training is at the heart of everything HKCAAVQ
does, and it is what drives our continuous dialogue with stakeholders
across disciplines and industries. | would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to my fellow Council Members, the
management and staff of the Secretariat in working with dedication
to fulfii HKCAAVQ's mission. However, our achievements would
not be possible without the interaction and support from our many
partners in Hong Kong and overseas. | look forward to our continued
collaboration in the years to come to take our education and training
environment to new heights.

v —

Ir Dr Alex CHAN Siu-kun, BBS
Chairman

Accreditation ® Assessment e Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Executive Director’s Repori

Executive Director 8 %=
Dorte Kristoffersen 2 £

The education scene in Hong Kong continues to be vibrant, impacted
by new government policies, operator initiatives, international
trends, and the increasingly diverse needs of students and the
wider community. It is important for the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ)
as the statutory quality assurance body to be able to effectively
respond to the latest developments of the self-financed education
sector and support the demands of the society for quality higher and
vocational education. With this priority in mind HKCAAVQ has over
the past two years initiated a number of policy initiatives and as well
as developed tools that aim at addressing the evolving needs of our
stakeholders.

REFEHRE
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Executive Director’s Report RS ®RE

Since 2014 HKCAAVQ has been strengthening its IT infrastructure.
Although a number of the benefits are not directly visible to our
stakeholders the infrastructure project streamlines the accreditation
and assessment processes and provides specialists, assessors and
HKCAAVQ staff with easy access to information from operators. The
IT infrastructure also enables us to systematise data about operators
that is critical for us to introduce new policies, improve existing
processes and ensure that our processes focus on the areas that
require attention. An important example of such an initiative is the full
implementation of the differentiation approach to accreditation that
was approved by the Council in December 2016 and will be rolled
out in the financial year 2017-18.

The purpose of the accreditation tests that HKCAAVQ performs
as the accreditation authority is to assess operators’ competence
to operate and offer programmes that meet QF standards. For
HKCAAVQ to accredit an operator or a learning programme we
must have confidence that the operator is competent to manage
its programmes while meeting the minimum quality requirements.
This is the gate-keeping role HKCAAVQ performs under the AAVQ
Ordinance. It is equally important for HKCAAVQ to perform a capacity
building role, i.e. what we often refer to as our gate-opening role.
We perform this role through a range of means such as publication
of guidelines and guidance notes, and organisation of training
workshops and seminars. We develop and introduce new training
events as the stakeholders’ needs evolve. Workshops for operators
seeking Programme Area Accreditation and Institutional Review for
Private University title are two such examples.

Accreditation is not an end in itself. It is a means to ensure that
students receive quality education that meets certain standards
and the learning programmes available to students are continuously
improved to be up-to-date. HKCAAVQ is now making summary
reports of all accreditation exercises conducted as part of the Four-
stage QA process available to the public on the HKCAAVQ website.
A total of 554 accreditation reports had been published by 31 March
this year. We are on track of meeting the goal set by the HKCAAVQ
Council in 2016 of publishing full accreditation reports in 2018.
Another critical source of information for students about quality
assured learning programmes available in Hong Kong is the QR.
HKCAAVQ is responsible for managing the QR in its capacity of QR
Authority. The information made available on the QR continues to
expand, with enhanced information about industries and branches of
listed learning programmes made available in early 2017.

Accreditation ® Assessment ® Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Executive Director’s Report BE=R S

In February HKCAAVQ launched an online knowledgebase, QAOK,
that contains good quality assurance practices, identified through
international and local sources. It is a free resource for institutions
seeking inspiration to improve their internal quality assurance
capability. The development of QAOK would not have been possible
without the contributions of and support from Hong Kong higher
education institutions and international experts. | hope it will be a
valuable tool for the education and training sector.

It is one of HKCAAVQ's strategic objectives to be a nationally and
globally recognised quality assurance agency. Our engagement
work is an important means to ensure that we stay up-to-date
with best practices in external quality assurance. To this end we
have established two liaison panels. The purpose of the panels
is to constitute a platform for dialogue and exchange between
HKCAAVQ and representatives of the academic and vocational
education sectors. This platform for exchange is in addition to
our annual operator surveys that collect valuable feedback and
information on the conduct and quality of accreditation exercises.
| am also delighted to be able to report that we have worked with
the Federation of Self-financed Tertiary Education and the Quality
Assurance Council (QAC) of the University Grants Committee to
strengthen the quality assurance culture in Hong Kong through
a jointly organised conference and with QAC’s contribution of
commendations from its two rounds of university audits to the QAOK.
| look forward to our continued cooperation in the years to come.

In the Annual Report 2015-16 we covered the launch of the review
of our Standards and Criteria. The review is progressing according
to plan with the revised Standards to be approved by the HKCAAVQ
Council in the first half of 2018. | want to take this opportunity to
thank our stakeholders for their support in the research phase of the
review. We look forward to equally constructive input in the public
consultation phase that will commence in June 2017.

2l Fkfen_

Ms Dorte Kristoffersen
Executive Director
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The Council
sTES

The Council and its functions

The Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ), formerly known as the Hong
Kong Council for Academic Accreditation (HKCAA), was established
in 1990 as an independent statutory body to provide authoritative
advice on academic standards of degree programmes in higher
education institutions in Hong Kong.

In 2007, the Council was reconstituted under the HKCAAVQ
Ordinance (Chapter 1150). The HKCAAVQ took on responsibility
for the vocational sector and statutory roles as the Accreditation
Authority and Qualifications Register Authority under the Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework under the Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Chapter 592).

The HKCAAVQ provides quality assurance and assessment services
to education and training institutions, course providers and the
general public. In addition to its statutory roles, the HKCAAVQ also
provides advisory and consultancy services in education qualifications
and standards to government bureaux and other organisations in
Hong Kong and the Asia-Pacific region.

HKCAAVQ is governed by a Council comprising local and non-local
members. The Council of HKCAAVQ is established under section
3 of the HKCAAVQ Ordinance. Its Chairman, Vice-chairman and
members are appointed by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong in their
personal capacity under the HKCAAVQ Ordinance.

The composition of the Council’s membership includes members
who have quality assurance or accreditation related expertise or
experience and good standing in the field of education and training
or in any industry. The Permanent Secretary for Education or his
representative and HKCAAVQ'’s Executive Director are ex-officio
members.

Accreditation ® Assessment ® Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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The functions of the Council are defined in the HKCAAVQ Ordinance
(Cap 1150):

1. Conduct accreditation tests in relation to institutions,
assessment agencies, learning programmes, qualifications and

individuals;

2. Promote the methods and practices of conducting
accreditation tests;

3. Disseminate information on standards of learning programmes;

4, Establish relationships with accreditation QA bodies; education
and training authorities outside Hong Kong;

5. Conduct seminars, conferences and other forms of
instructional/promotional activities;

6. Conduct or commission research into the maintenance or
monitoring of standards of education and of training; and

7. Perform functions outside Hong Kong with the prior approval of
the Secretary for Education.

The Council meets three times a year, i.e. in January, May and

September. Subject to section 8(1) of the HKCAAVQ Ordinance, its

work is supported by three standing committees:

- Qualifications and Accreditation Committee (QAC)

- Finance Committee (FC)

- Personnel and Administration Committee (PAC)

The Council L85
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Terms of reference of the standing committees can be found on
HKCAAVQ website and in Appendix of this Annual Report.
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The Secretariat

WELRR

The Executive Director, supported by two Deputies overseeing
academic accreditation and vocational and professional and training
education (VPET) accreditation, leads the Secretariat which is the
executive arm of the Council in the implementation of its decisions,
functions and policies. The Secretariat is organised by business units
supported by a number of corporate services units. As at 31 March
2017, the Secretariat has 95 full-time staff in post.

Organisation Chart
i

Council
HERAR

Executive Director

LS

HERNAREFRARSESWER
0T WHRIRHE(EIN) RIBHSE
(BEZIHE )X - WEERABTER
MENTTHE BEZETERASAR
F o BEEMECE - MERNBMSERER
RETRIRISHEPT RITR B IS 3P4
Ko EE2017F3A31H @ FERWE
BHEBEEHMET -

Qualifications

Academic Vocational
Accreditation . . Regarchy FrepiewolK and
dnd Human Information | Qualifications a.nt.l Eorbyifing Facilities .a.nd 4 Professional
eloodontont Resources Technology | Assessment Training RS Management | Qualifications Accreditation
ADER EAH L Y aa MER - RIEEE Register
2551 EF e e BERER
R = BETE
EE A
Remarks: B
1. Deputy Executive Director (Vocational) was re-titled as Deputy 1. BlIE®HE(HE)N20165F7 H6HREE

Executive Director (VPET) with effect from 6 July 2016.
2. Executive Office and Engagement Unit were re-structured and renamed

as Executive Support and Engagement with effect from 1 September
2016.
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Accreditation

ST ARFS

HKCAAVQ accredits academic and vocational and professional
education and training (VPET) programmes by applying its
accreditation standards and criteria to ensure that the learning
programmes and their operators’ meet the minimum quality
standards for recognition under the Qualifications Framework (QF)
and entry into the Qualifications Register (QR).

Accredited programmes are placed on the QR, a publicly available
website that lists all of the quality assured programmes and
qualifications in Hong Kong, including those offered by the self-
accrediting, publicly-funded universities. Summary reports of
accreditation outcomes are published on the HKCAAVQ website to
help learners make an informed decision on their studies.

Major Developments
Inclusion of Facilitation Phase in Accreditation

HKCAAVQ piloted facilitation approaches for accreditation between
late 2013 and early 2015. With the experience gained from the pilot
studies, HKCAAVQ has formally introduced a facilitation phase in
eligible accreditation exercises by taking into account the operators’
accreditation track record. The facilitation phase consists of a
preview approach and a customised approach.

For both new and accredited operators, HKCAAVQ staff may adopt
a preview approach. That means HKCAAVQ staff will provide initial
observations to an operator on the completeness and relevance of
the evidence to be submitted for accreditation.

For operators with a good track record, HKCAAVQ staff may adopt
a customised approach. That is, operators will be provided with a
customised accreditation scope, as informed by accreditation track
record, against the relevant accreditation criteria and standards from
previous accreditation exercises.

1 The University Grants Committee (UGC)-funded institutions which enjoy self-
accrediting status are subject to quality audits by the Quality Assurance
Council (QAC) under the aegis of the UGC. Since the dissolution of the Joint
Quality Review Committee in November 2016, the self-financing sub-degree
operations of the UGC-funded institutions have been subject to quality
audits of the QAC under the UGC.
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This year, the steps of the facilitation phase were incorporated in
the Guidance Notes on Initial Evaluation, Learning Programme
Accreditation and Learning Programme Re-accreditation. The
Guidance Notes were published on HKCAAVQ website in October
2016.

Future Developments/Priorities

Differentiated Accreditation Approaches

After the implementation of its internal Quality Management System
(QMS), HKCAAVQ is able to retrieve an operator’s accreditation
history with HKCAAVQ and use the information to inform decisions
on the application of differentiated accreditation approaches as well
as differentiated approaches to substantial change assessments.

We will further develop our approach to conducting differentiated
accreditation exercises expected to take effect from mid-2017. Such
exercises will be based on a systematic analysis of the performance
profile of an operator in terms of its accreditation history as well as its
performance in other assessment services conducted by HKCAAVQ,
e.g. CEF reimbursable courses and non-local courses registered
or exempted from registration under the Non-local Higher and
Professional Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap 493).

Operators with positive track records may be eligible for differentiated
accreditation approaches such as paper-based review accreditation,
customised accreditation, variation in validity period or some
combination of the above.

It is intended that the differentiation approaches will also be applied
to the assessment of substantial changes on the basis of evidence of
a positive track record.

It is expected that differentiated accreditation approaches can
enable eligible operators to benefit from a more efficient accreditation
process while HKCAAVQ is still able to ensure that the threshold
standards are met.
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Accreditation SRR

Non-QF Accreditation Service

Under Section 4(2)(a) of Cap. 1150, HKCAAVQ may conduct, subject
to the prior approval of the Secretary for Education, accreditation
tests outside Hong Kong.

HKCAAVQ has been approached by accredited Hong Kong
operators, both academic and vocational, expressing an interest
in seeking accreditation of their locally accredited programmes
operated outside Hong Kong, as proof of programme quality.

In 2016, HKCAAVQ conducted a non-QF pilot accreditation exercise
for the Hong Kong Apprentice Jockeys’ School of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club (AJSHKJC) for AJSHKJC'’s four existing QF-recognised
programmes to be operated in Mainland China for Mainland
students.

At the time of reporting, HKCAAVQ is developing a policy for non-
QF accreditation service for accredited Hong Kong operators
offering learning programmes outside Hong Kong primarily on the
Mainland as informed by the pilot study. The accreditation outcome
will be able to certify the quality of a learning programme against
HKCAAVQ accreditation standards but this outcome does not lead to
recognition of the associated qualification(s) awarded by the operator
under the HKQF.
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Accreditation of Online Learning Programmes

HKCAAVQ has been accrediting learning programmes in face-to-
face delivery mode under the QF since 2008. With the advancement
in technology and proliferation of internet access, a variety of delivery
modes, ranging from blended delivery to fully online delivery, are
increasingly being used around the world and in Hong Kong.

Education institutions in Hong Kong increasingly appreciate the
benefits that online delivery modes can bring which include enhanced
student learning experience and expanded programme offerings.
HKCAAVQ has initiated a pilot project to test an approach to the
accreditation of online learning programmes. The issues to be
examined in the pilot project include the definitions of online delivery
mode and an online learning programme; eligibility for making an
application for HKCAAVQ accreditation service; and approaches to
online programme accreditation.

At the time of reporting, the site visit of the pilot project was
scheduled for October 2017. The outcome and experience gained
from the pilot project will be used for evaluating the pilot project, and
will inform the revisions to the relevant guidelines and guidance notes.

It is expected that the accreditation service for online learning
programmes, subject to approval by the HKCAAVQ Council, will be
available to operators in the first half of 2018.

A QBBG initiative to conduct joint
accreditation with TEQSA

Both HKCAAVQ and the Tertiary Education Quality and Standards
Agency (TEQSA) are members of the Quality Beyond Boundaries
Group (@BBG). Inaugurated in March 2014, QBBG is a network of
international quality assurance agencies from major sending and
receiving countries of cross border education. It has been formed to
address common challenges by creating a platform to collaborate,
share information and best practices, and work together to improve
quality assurance systems.
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Accreditation SRR

In line with the QBBG members’ commitment to work together,
HKCAAVQ and TEQSA are planning to pilot a joint accreditation
to be conducted for a TEQSA-registered provider of one of its
transnational (TNE) learning programmes offered in Hong Kong.
The pilot project aims at developing and piloting an approach that
combines HKCAAVQ'’s learning programme accreditation process
and TEQSA'’s institutional re-registration process, while reducing
duplication of efforts and taking account of an institution’s track
record, in both Australia and Hong Kong.

In November 2016, a call for expression of interest to participate in
the pilot project was issued to TEQSA-registered providers who are
currently offering, or are considering to offer, learning programme(s)
in Hong Kong. Subsequently a provider was identified and the
site visit is scheduled for late November 2017. It is expected that
HKCAAVQ will be able to report on the findings from the conduct of
joint accreditation by mid-2018.

Preparation for the publication of full
accreditation reports

To increase transparency of the outcome of accreditation processes
to stakeholders, HKCAAVQ began publishing summary accreditation
reports in 2013. Since then, the summary reports have attracted
much interest from stakeholders with the web page of the summary
reports having recorded over 14,700 page views. As of end of May
2017, 576 summary accreditation reports have been published on
the HKCAAVQ website. Currently, the publication of summary reports
covers accreditation exercises in all the stages of the Four-stage
Quality Assurance Process.

With the publication of summary accreditation reports, the Council
has decided that the ultimate goal is to publish full accreditation
reports in line with international good practice. In preparation
for publication of full accreditation reports in the future, we have
commenced dialogues with the Liaison Panel for Academic
Accreditation and the Liaison Panel for Accreditation of Vocational
and Professional Education and Training to seek their views on the
existing practice of publication of summary accreditation reports, and
our plan to publish full accreditation reports.
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Academic Accreditation

BT

Key Figures FEHTF
Academic Programmes Accreditation under EFLE T HENRETE
QF

Comparison of Breakdown of Academic Programmes Accredited or Re-accredited

EMFENEENRERE IR

2015/16 2016/17

Doctor (L7) 241 0 0
Master Degree (L6) I8 22(] 2

Bachelor Degree (L5) 212 11 11
Professional Diploma (L5) B % XU& 0 0
Associate Degree/Higher Diploma (L4) I+ & & & 4 28
Professional Diploma (L4) EZ & 0 0
Diploma (L3) 3U& 0 y
Sub-total £t 17 41

Local Programme Re-accreditation 78 it iR 72 E 25
Master Degree (L6) f8 2]

Bachelor Degree (L5) 12

Associate Degree/Higher Diploma (L4) BIZ2+ /&4 SU&
Diploma (L3) 3 /&

Sub-total #5t

Non-Local Programme Accreditation FEZ8 it 3R 25725
Master Degree (L6) i8E 21

Bachelor Degree (L5) 212

Sub-total # 5t

Non-Local Programme Re-accreditation FEZNith 3R 2 B 2

Master Degree (L6) f8 £ 2(] 0 0
Bachelor Degree (L5) Z21-2{if 20 27
Sub-total #&&t 20 27
Total #&5t+ 66 920
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Comparison of Breakdown of Initial Evaluation Exercises

ASFEEEDE

2015/16 2016/17

Level 6 754K
Level 5 ER K
Level 4 A4
Sub-total 45t
Initial Evaluation for Collaborative Provision of Non-local Learning Programmes

—_ O O =
—_ a4 O O

SR RED DTG

Level 6 754

Level 5 EHA 2 2
Sub-total 425t 2 3

Comparison of Number of Programme Area Accreditation Exercises and Number of Programme Areas

ENEETFIHEF

2015/16 2016/17
0 1 (6 programme areas)
1 (5 [EEREE)

0 1 (8 programme areas)
1 (8 EZRHE)

Programme Area Accreditation £} & E 75
Level 6 7<%

Level 5 R

Comparison of Number of Periodic Review Exercises and Number of Programme Areas in 2015/16 and 2016/17
2015/16 12 2016/17 FE EHBEHF

Periodic Review EHfE & 2015/16 2016/17
Level 5 0 1 (8 programme areas)
1 (8 R} EE)
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In 2016/17, HKCAAVQ conducted (a) an Initial Evaluation (IE) at
HKQF Level 4 for an institution preparing to offer 28 Associate
Degree programmes, leading to the increase in the number of LPAs
from 17 to 41 programmes when compared to last year.

While programme areas like Computing, Accounting and Arts
remained popular, new programmes in the areas of Health Science,
Medical Science, Testing and Certification and Creative Industry
have undergone LPA. This is partly attributable to the Study Subsidy
Scheme for Designated Professions/Sectors (SSSDP). Under the
SSSDP, a prescribed number of students are subsidised to pursue
designated full-time locally-accredited self-financing undergraduate
programmes in selected disciplines. From 2015/16 to 2017/18,
the list of designated programmes cover six industries with high
manpower demand, i.e. Health Care, Architecture and Engineering,
Testing and Certification, Creative Industries, Logistics, and Tourism
and Hospitality.

During the year, HKCAAVQ conducted IE for three local and non-
local operator partnerships, LPA for a total of 11 NLPs and re-LPA for
27 NLPs, with the participation of six local operators and 11 overseas
partners. There was a 21% decrease and 35% increase in the
numbers of LPAs and re-LPAs respectively compared to last year.
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Major developments

Learning Programme Review in Macao

In line with HKCAAVQ’s strategic direction to position itself as a
nationally and internationally recognised QA body, HKCAAVQ has
contributed to the quality assurance of higher education in Macao
based on its accreditation expertise.

During the year, with prior approval of the Secretary for Education,
HKCAAVQ conducted two Learning Programme Reviews involving
four academic programmes of a higher education institute in Macao.

Quality Enhancement Support Scheme (QESS)
and Quality Assurance Online Knowledgebase
(QAOK)

In 2014, HKCAAVQ succeeded in obtaining funding from the Quality
Enhancement Support Scheme (QESS) under the Education Bureau
to carry out a project in promoting good practices and quality culture
in higher education.

The project has involved the staging of a series of external forums
and internal workshops on good practices in quality assurance and
the construction of a publicly available online knowledgebase for
disseminating the good practices identified from the forums and
workshops conducted under the project.

In February 2017, HKCAAVQ completed the project as scheduled.
The online knowledgebase, the Quality Assurance Online
Knowledgebase (QAOK), went live on 28 February 2017.

Under the project, a total of six forums and six workshops were
organised. The forums were organised for local higher education
institutions to share good practices as well as for overseas experts
to share international perspectives on quality assurance trends and
practices. The workshops were conducted mainly for HKCAAVQ
professional staff to strengthen their work knowledge with respect to
the latest developments worldwide and enhance their competence
in quality assurance. At the forums, local keynote speakers shared
different perspectives in quality assurance, new approaches to quality
enhancement and examples of success stories.
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Academic Accreditation 2451

QAOK is a user-friendly knowledgebase which contains examples of
good practices in quality assurance drawn from the post-secondary
education sector both locally and internationally. Its primary aims are
to serve as an information portal for institutions seeking to improve
their internal quality assurance processes and to disseminate the
good practices to a wider community. The QAOK covers a broad
spectrum of topics including institutional governance, programme
development and student support services. Visitors to QAOK are
encouraged to share the good practices with colleagues and leave
comments on individual good practices on the QAOK for constructive
exchange of views. The QAOK can be accessed at attp://www.
nkcaavg.edu.hk/gaok/.

AOK will be updated regularly with new good practices as they are
identified.
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Future Developments/Priorities

Quality Assurance Online Knowledgebase
(QAOK)

To further promote quality assurance culture across the higher
education sector, HKCAAVQ will continue to identify and disseminate
good practices through a number of measures.

As a first priority HKCAAVQ will identify good practices during
accreditation exercises and operators will be invited to contribute to
the writing up of case studies for publishing on the QAOK.

Good practices will also be identified through the workshops
and seminars delivered by guest speakers invited by HKCAAVQ.
International experts will be invited to conduct workshops and
seminars to share their experience and insight on specific topics to
HKCAAVQ staff, and good practices will be collected through these
activities.

To date, over 150 good practices are contained on the QAOK
for public information. To benefit a wider community, HKCAAVQ
will actively reach out to the international audience through its
cooperation and collaboration with different quality assurance
agencies. HKCAAVQ will make reciprocal arrangements with non-
local accreditation agencies that have similar databases of good
practices to post the links of their database on the QAOK and the link
of the QAOK on their websites. This arrangement will also promote
quality exchange of experiences and ideas with other agencies.

The effectiveness of the QAOK in helping operators to improve their
internal quality assurance processes will be evaluated through an
on-line survey in March 2018. The survey will cover the content and
user-friendliness of the QAOK for continuous improvement.
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Vocational and Professional Accreditation
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Key Figures

HKCAAVQ provides accreditation and quality assurance services
for vocational and professional education and training (VPET).
VPET operators come from different sectors including private
education/training institutes, public organisations, non-government
organisations, professional bodies and commercial corporations of
different kinds.

This year marked a fruitful year for vocational and professional
accreditation. A total of 19 Initial Evaluations (IE) were completed and
147 learning programmes were accredited or re-accredited.

When compared with the previous year, the number of |E exercises
increased. Among the |E exercises, five were existing accredited
operators that undertook IE at a higher Qualifications Framework
(QF) level than their originally approved IE status. Operators that
completed the IE exercise at QF Level 5 include the Learning and
Development Department of Group Human Resources (Retail Hong
Kong), A.S. Watson Retail (HK) Limited, Training & Development
Centre, Human Resources Department, Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited and the School of Nursing, Hong Kong Sanatorium &
Hospital.
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Comparison of Breakdown of Initial Evaluation, Vocational Programms Accredited or Re-accredited

ERALTHENHTERE  RETERRAREAFTNREXEERERE IR

QF Level Number of LPA Number of Re-LPA
&R REFEEE REBEEEA
2015/16  2016/17 2015/16 2016/17

QF Level 6 EFEZRIEE 64 - - - = - 1

QF Level 5 BEZREFE S5 2 3 4 3 - 3

QF Level 4 BFZEEE 44 2 2 15 6 11

QF Level 3 BFEEE IR 7 9 35 23 35 39

QF Level 2 EFEEE 24K 2 5 33 15 49 34

QF Level 1 EEEEE 14 - - 16 6 21 6
Total A& 13 19 103 53 111 94
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There is a decrease in the number of learning programmes
accredited. The drop is primarily at QF Levels 1 to 3 due to a large-
scale accreditation exercise of the Employees Retraining Board
qualifications conducted in 2014 to 2015. The total number of re-
accreditation remains relatively the same.

The validity periods for 12 programmes from four different operators
were abridged and the applicable qualifications and programmes
were removed from the Qualifications Register in 2016/17 as
compared with five programmes in 2015/16. Among the 12
programmes, one was due to the closure of an operator, seven
were cases where operators decided not to continue to offer the
programmes, and the remaining four were programmes offered by an
operator whose accreditation reports were withdrawn by HKCAAVQ
due to substantial changes made that had not been approved.

Diploma Yi Jin (DYJ) Programme

The DYJ is offered by seven member institutions of the Federation
for Self-financing Tertiary Education (FSTE) and is recognised under
the Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (QF) as meeting the
accreditation standards at QF Level 3.

HKCAAVQ in 2016 conducted a large-scale exercise to re-accredit
the DYJ programme that included nine Specification of Competency
Standard (SCS)-based Certificate programmes. The nine SCS-based
Certificate programmes cover seven industries including Automotive,
Banking, Beauty, Elderly Care Service, Electrical and Mechanical
Services, Information and Communications Technology and Retail.

Benchmarking Study of DYJ

As a result of a benchmarking study conducted by HKCAAVQ in
2011 at the invitation of the EDB, the DYJ qualification is deemed
comparable to the attainment of the Level 2 standard in five subjects
including Chinese Language and English Language in Hong Kong
Diploma of Secondary Education (HKDSE).

Following a curriculum review conducted by EDB and FSTE in 2016,
HKCAAVQ was commissioned by FSTE to conduct a benchmarking
study for the DYJ against the HKDSE to reconfirm the continued
comparability. The outcome of the study reconfirmed the continued
comparability and the outcome was released in January 2017.
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MTR Academy’s Programmes

In 2016, HKCAAVQ conducted an accreditation exercise for the
newly established MTR Academy (HK) Company Limited (MTRA)
and its Advanced Diploma in Railway Engineering at QF Level 4.
The programme, as an initiative driven by the MTRA’s mission of
strengthening the standards and professionalism of the railway
industry in Hong Kong, was the first of the MTRA’s Programmes to
be accredited by HKCAAVQ.

Public Organisations’ Programmes

In recent years, HKCAAVQ has seen a trend of public organisations
seeking accreditation for their learning/in-house training programmes.
Following the Force Search Unit (Key Points and Search Division,
Operations Wing, Hong Kong Police) and Hong Kong Police College,
the Tactical Training Section of the Staff Training Institute of the
Correctional Services Department is the third government unit to
have sought accreditation for its in-house training programmes. In
the exercise, two in-house training programmes of the Staff Training
Institute of the Correctional Services Department at QF Levels 3 and
4 respectively were accredited.
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In October 2016, HKCAAVQ accredited two programmes from the
Clothing Industry Training Authority at QF level 3. This marked the
first learning programme offered by CITA that is recognised under
the QF. The programmes have been developed with an emphasis
on the technical knowledge in the areas of textile materials, pattern
design, clothing production and computer application. Graduates of
these programmes will be able to demonstrate an understanding of
the professional practice in the fashion industry and communicate
effectively among different parties of the fashion supply chain.

Accreditation of SCS-based programmes

Since the implementation of the QF in 2008, EDB has been forming
Industry Training Advisory Committees (ITACs)/Cross-Industry
Training Advisory Committee (CITAC) for various industries with a
view to developing industry-based SCS and Training Packages.
As at March 2017, 21 ITACs including one CITAC were formed.
An increasing number of operators have developed SCS-based
programmes by adopting the relevant Units of Competencies (UoCs)
specified in the SCS.

During the year, HKCAAVQ accredited 77 SCS-based programmes
for the Banking, Beauty and Hairdressing, Catering, Elderly Care
Service, Electrical & Mechanical Services, Jewellery and Property
Management industries. Of these 77 SCS-based accredited
programmes, the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers’ first SCS-based
programme at QF Level 6 was accredited in September 2016. As at
March 2017, a total of 352 SCS-based programmes (QF Levels 1 —
6) covering 15 industries were listed on the Qualifications Register
(QR).
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Comparison of Breakdown of SCS-based Programmes on QR

LEREREMNEIREREBE S8

(QF levels 1-6) on the QR
(EEEBE1ZE6R)

CTEE e
JD

2015/16 2015/16

QF Level Ly, g L, 4 QF Level .2 Ly, & L. &
é}ﬁ;ﬁj—ﬁi&}ﬂju A3 A4 BREIRRERR A2 AR 3 B 4
2016/17 2016/17

QF Level Lv.3 Lv.4 QF Level Lv. 2 Lv. 3 Lv. 4
B FE LR A | AE 3 B 4 BREIERERR B 2 B3 BIE 4

Lv. 5 3 Lv. 6 3
B 5 B 6
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2016/17

QF Level Lv. 1 32 Lv. 2 90 Lv. 3 47 Lv. 4 9 ég1|_6el\/1e|7 .41
B R LR R AT | EFE A EFE 2 EFE 3 BFE 4 B R 4 B B 4
Catering AR % ﬂ -\v Jewellery BRE ¥
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Property Management
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Moderation of SCS and SCS-based Training
Packages

HKCAAVQ supports the development of the QF. This includes the
moderation of the SCS and the SCS-based Training Packages at
the request of EDB. During the year, HKCAAVQ moderated five sets
of SCS for the Banking, Beauty and Hairdressing, Information and
Communications Technology, Retail, and Security industries, as well
as seven sets of SCS-based Training Packages, including two sets
from the Jewellery industry and others from the Banking, Chinese
Catering, Elderly Care Service, Electrical and Mechanical Service, and
Watch and Clock industries.

Major Developments
Pilot Project for Non-QF Accreditation Service

Under Section 4(2)(a) of Cap. 1150, HKCAAVQ may, subject to the
prior approval of the Secretary for Education, conduct accreditation
tests outside Hong Kong.

In 2016 HKCAAVQ conducted a non-QF accreditation exercise
for the Hong Kong Apprentice Jockeys’ School of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club (AJSHKJC) as a pilot exercise for AJSHKJC'’s four
existing QF-recognised programmes to be operated in Mainland
China for the Mainland students.

The four programmes of AJSHKJC were determined by HKCAAVQ
as meeting the accreditation standards. The four programmes of
AJSHKJC can be offered as HKCAAVQ-accredited non-QF learning
programmes delivered at the approved training sites in Huizhou and
Huangcun in Mainland China.
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New RPL Assessment Agencies

Accreditation of Assessment Agencies is a quality assurance service
that underpins the Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) mechanism
of the QF which is to recognise work experiences and competencies
acquired by practitioners at the workplace and provide an alternative
route for practitioners to obtain QF-recognised qualifications.

This year, HKCAAVQ accredited two new Assessment Agencies,
i.e. HKU School of Professional and Continuing Education for the
Logistics Industry and the Hong Kong Productivity Council for the
Manufacturing Technology (Tooling, Metals and Plastics) Industry
respectively. Together with these two new Assessment Agencies,
there are six appointed Assessment Agencies for the 15 industries
providing RPL assessments to recognise work experiences and
competencies acquired by practitioners at the workplace.

Future Developments/Priorities

Sharing Workshops on Development of SCS-
based Programmes and Use of QF Credit
under the QF

In recent years, a growing number of VPET operators have expressed
an interest to adopt the SCS of relevant industries when developing
new learning programmes or enhancing their existing programmes.
With knowledge and skills generated through the accreditation
process of SCS-based programmes, HKCAAVQ planned a series
of sharing workshops in mid-2017 to provide operators with
core understanding of how UoCs can be effectively used and the
techniques and tools, including the use of QF credit, in developing
quality SCS-based programmes.
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In addition to accreditation under the QF, HKCAAVQ provides a
range of assessment services and consultancy services as authorised
under any other enactment and/or by the Secretary for Education.
For examples:

(@ The provision of professional advice to the Registrar of Non-
local Higher and Professional Education Courses (the Registrar)
in the assessment of non-local courses registered or exempted
from registration under the Non-local Higher and Professional
Education (Regulation) Ordinance (Cap. 493). The approval of
registration or exemption from registration of a non-local course
under Cap. 493 rests with the Registrar.

(b)  The provision of expert advice to the Labour and Welfare
Bureau (LWB), the final approval authority of the Continuing
Education Fund (CEF), on the courses to be included in the
register of reimbursable courses under the CEF.

(c) Performing the role of the sole assessment authority for the
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) Programme under
the Insurance Intermediaries Quality Assurance Scheme (IIQAS)
of the Insurance Authority.

(d) The provision of quality assurance service of the Applied
Learning (ApL) courses as commissioned by the EDB.

Key Figures
Assessment of Non-local Courses

This year, HKCAAVQ assessed 53 new applications, 369 annual
returns and 119 applications for changes to registered courses.
Compared to the previous year, the number of new applications
is slightly lower than that in 2015/16 at 7%. Courses leading to
bachelor’s and master awards continue to be the majority of the new
applications.

Assessment
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Assessment LIRS

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment by discipline

FRMREEMEAFHFT I E(RENER D]

2015/16 2016/17
Accounting/Business/Finance €3t /7% /£ & 19 12
Architecture/Surveying/Housing/Engineering 3248 A& /E R/ #h Ti2 13 8
Social Sciences / Education t &Rl %% 5& 3 7
Hospitality/Tourism & & BR 7S,/ ik % 4 7
Law JEf2 1 1
Fine Art/Design #i7 /2% 5t 10 7
Science/Technology &£ /&l — 1
Others HAb 7 10
Total 2% 57 53

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course
assessmentin 2015/16 and 2016/17 by discipline

2015/16582016/1 75 FEIE A SRAZaE M FH SR B (i 22 P A 43 380

19
1 [ 2016/17
L 413 I _2015/16

10 10
4 | 8 —— _ — . 0000 — -
7 7 7 7
4 | | — 4 -
3
11 0 1

T T . T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T 1

Accounting  Architecture / Social Hospitality / Law Fine Art / Science/ Others

/Business Surveying/  Sciences/  Tourism hig Design Technology Hiiir

/Finance Housing / Education  ERERERE /st FlEF

/¥ Engineering  dgRiey ;
&8 EEAE g L
EE/
AR

40 Accreditation ® Assessment e Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register



Assessment LIRS

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment by level of study

FRMREEMAFTHFT I E(REEKFD )

2015/16 2016/17
Doctorate 181241 1 3

Master 18 21 19 12
Postgraduate Certificate/ Diploma E+1&)FiEFE OB 5 8
Graduate Certificate/ Diploma j&#& & E /U8 4 3
Bachelor with Honours 24 (42 ) & 14 14
Bachelor £ 421 1 1
Higher Diploma 1= &% 3U& 9 7
Higher Certificate = A E=E - 1
Certificate &= - 1
Professional Qualification % 3£ & iF 4 2
Others HAb - 1
Total %] 57 53

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course
assessmentin 2015/16 and 2016/17 by level of study
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Assessment LIRS

Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course assessment by geographic origin

FRMREEMAFHF I E(REREELES H)

2015/16 2016/17
UK Z2E 38 39

Australia SEM 8 3
USA £E 3 3
Ireland & fR 3 -
Others b 5 8
Total B 57 53
Comparison of breakdown of new applications for non-local course
assessmentin 2015/16 and 2016/17 by geographic origin
2015/16822016/17F EIEAMSRIEE M HHF R (R E R )
United 38
Kingdom
s 39
Australia 8
B S
UsA 3 2015/16
=8 = 2016/17
Ireland 3
=Y
Others 5
Hoftr 8
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Assessment of CEF Courses

Each year, as commissioned by the LWB, the HKCAAVQ conducts
surprise audit visits to CEF courses to monitor the quality and
relevancy of courses after registration. A total of 85 visits were
conducted during the reporting period.

This year, HKCAAVQ assessed 720 applications, including 179
new course applications and 541 applications for amendments to
registered CEF reimbursable courses. These numbers represent a
decrease of 24% and 21% in the number of new course applications
and applications for amendments respectively. As regards the
breakdown of the number of new course applications, the number of
new course applications from non-self-accrediting course providers
has increased by 137% as compared to that in 2015/16; and that
from self-accrediting course providers has however decreased by
55%.

Assessment LIRS
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Assessment LIRS

Comparison of breakdown of applications for assessment of CEF new reimbursable courses

FRESESTERBENERENHRERBERFTIE

By Self-accrediting By Non self-accrediting

Institutions Course Providers
Type of Courses HBETHERE R BITHERE
REEE & 3 & B & I & BR

2015/16 2016/17 2015/16 2016/17

Business Services 2 AR5 66 47 14 28
Financial Services % B AR T % 44 22 - 4
Creative Industries & T % 9 1 3 5
Tourism Hf i % 11 5 6 1
Language & 59 10 2 8
Logistics #i7t % 1 - 1 -
Design (Product and Digital) 25t (5 MG & 5T) 8 2 2 9

Interpersonal and Intrapersonal Skills for the Workplace - - - -
TERE AR R ABA A BE
SCS-based A& W 1FLE BHFRIZ 1 2 10 35

Total A% 199 89 38 90

Comparison of Breakdown of Applications for Assessment of CEF New
Reimbursable Courses in 2015/16 and 2016/17
2015164 /& K 2016M T E R GE R A S T B BIER BN RERFYRT

Business Service

RS

2015/16
2016/17

Financial Service

Creative Industries

glETR
Tourism
i3z
Language
B
Logistics
ki il 20116 = By Self-accrediting Institutions
) 201817 HETFEREERERR
Design
Product & Digital
(Fre ufﬁéf e By Non-self-accrediting Course Providers
(B REBHRT) gg;ggi%ﬁ@
7
:EETJ.;':E.?:Z: ;::lsforlhe = By Self;accrediting Institutions
‘Workplace P o
TAFRMIABRREASBE HETERE SRS
SCS-based 201617 = By Non-self-accrediting Course Providers
EhiEEREEE HIEEATEERE
et
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Assessment of CPD Programmes

In 2014, HKCAAVQ launched a mechanism to recognise QF-
recognised programmes as qualified CPD activities under the [IQAS
either through direct recognition or through HKCAAVQ'’s vetting
service.

During the year, 123 new applications, 288 annual re-assessments
and 340 change applications were processed under the [IQAS.
Compared to the previous year, the number of re-assessment
applications was stable and that for course amendments dropped
28%. On the other hand, there was a growth of 17% for the new
applications. This reflects the increasing industry demand for
professional development for practitioners.

In addition to assessed CPD activities, 20 accredited programmes
in the Insurance industry have been directly recognised as qualified
CPD activities under the CPD Programme of [IQAS.

Assessment LIRS

FEERECRETZ%

EA2014¢ﬁ_ ﬂ%%?ﬁtﬂ?%ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%%‘l
A 4EET R 14 M RBR AR B Y ERAR -
QVHW% ﬁfﬂAqﬂn)\E%%mu

EITHRFBEZEEBRE - MATED

R FEFRZA T HEZEER Y ARE ':Pu
ANBRRBAE THHEZE RS

i

EHREHA - FFEBTHK T 1238FR

TEFTZ RS 288 THAFEZHFE N 340
AP HE BREFRBLE - AFE

BABE AL - BB ERBE AT
Be28% - SAHTRIZATXAOBA LI T
17%  RAEAEHR B ELEENE
KA o

BRIFES EEERIZFTZIN - £F 201
KHENRBRERE B xw—f?éjf%

BENTAERRENE THHEREE
f'%u?'ﬁﬁ °

Comparison of breakdown of assessed CPD programmes for Insurance Authority

ETRHRBRTIN ARG EELEERERE 2

2015/16 105

2016/17 123

Course
Re-assessment Amendment
Application Application
BEBERRE BB HRFE
290 475
288 340

Quality Assurance Services

In the school sector, HKCAAVQ continues to be commissioned by
EDB to quality assure the delivery of ApL courses. This year, quality
assurance visits were conducted for 11 ApL courses offered by eight
Course Providers for the 2016 — 2018 cohort. The number of visits
was similar to last year.

BERERSE

HEREERYEREZEAAISTER
BRI BITHERRELE - £#FE
HR - TERYEMERSH/ N\ TR
WA 11 HE 2016 — 2018 B 4F
EHERASERE  ERNHEELEFE
FB4Y ©
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Qualifications Assessment

BRI

HKCAAVQ offers qualifications assessment services for the general
public, organisations, and government bureaux/departments on
qualifications awarded by granting bodies outside Hong Kong. We
offer a professional opinion on whether the totality of the educational
qualifications of an individual, i.e. the integrated learning outcomes of
the highest qualification achieved, meets the standard of a particular
level of qualification in Hong Kong. This includes those learning
outcomes achieved through learning deemed to have a substantial
bearing on the qualification under assessment.

Key Figures

AERRRABAL - TEEEMBUTE
FIR O A BB RS - FERE
REBAZREERE(BZFHEME
RRBENGEEEERN - Ehemy
XMEEEEEEFENBEN)
EREDBEREEEEMRRNIREM
REEXER -

EEYT

Number of Qualifications Assessment Cases by Source of Application (1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017)

BRI AR ERRBERRESE(2016F4 A1 HE2017F3A31H)

Sources of Application B & 3R

Civil Service Bureau 2015-16
INVIESVS

- 147

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Education Bureau 2015-16
BER

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Individuals el 2 1 7
fERIAL y

2,919

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Other Organisations 2015-16
HAts

539

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

- 3,007
4 gy
J
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Qualifications Assessment &G

Number of Qualifications Assessment Cases by Level of Major Qualifications held by Applicants
(1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017)
BRIGERBEREFEANEIEEERE D E(20166F4 A1 BEE201753H311H)

2015-16 2016-17
Level of Major Qualifications Number Number
BREE A A
Doctoral Degree &+ 33 32
Master’s Degree 181+ 467 459
Postgraduate Diploma/Certificate jF & X /& /&= 183 212
Bachelor’s Degree £+ 2,426 2,297
Sub-degree BlI£iz 76 336
Secondary School Level £ 72 E 100 111
Others Hth 322 253
Total 2 3,607 3,700

Place of Award of the Major Qualifications held by Applicants (1 April 2016 — 31 March 2017)

HEANTEERESHESHE (2016541 HE2017563H831H)

W 2015-16 Mumber m 2016-17 Number

A8 A8

Australia
L

Canada

=
France

i
Hong Kong, China
FEEE

India

FlIEE

Japan

B

Mainland China

New Zealand

il
Pakistan
RaE-3-hgizl
Philippines
FRE
South Africa
e
Taiwan, China
HEEE
UK
E)

1,060
1086

UsA
=H

Others
Esi)
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Qualifications Assessment & 5T{h

Place of Award of Major Qualifications assessed and considered as meeting the standard of comparable

qualifications under HKQF (1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017)*

IMEEBEWTIEAETBERRBE THENER KT (201654 A1 HE2017F3A31H)*

Places of Award of Major Qualification
TEEBRBERME

Australia &)

Canada (IN&X)

Mainland China (#F 1)

New Zealand (417858 )

UK (ZE)

USA ()

South Africa (F83E)

Taiwan (&)

2015-16 2016-17
Comparable rate Comparable rate

FERBHEE FEREHEE

ZBT ZBAT
956.1% 92.1%
100% 99.5%
99% 99.6%
98% 100%
96.5% 96.3%
95.5% 91.8%
96.3% 100%
95.2% 95.8%

* The qualifications assessment is neither an institutional nor a programme
accreditation, and the result relates only to the qualifications of the
individual applicant being assessed.

Yearly Totals

In 2016/17, HKCAAVQ conducted 3,700 qualifications assessments,
a slight increase of 2.6% when compared to the figure of 3,607 in the
previous year.
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Qualifications Assessment 283G

Source of Applications

The main reasons for the increase in applications are more “General
Purpose” applications from individuals and the Civil Service Bureau
(CSB). These types of applications aim to facilitate applicants’
seeking employment or further studies; more applications have been
received from organisations such as international schools in Hong
Kong. This is in part driven by the rapid expansion of the private
school education sector in Hong Kong. Similar to last year, the
number of applications received from the Quality Migrant Admission
Scheme (QMAS) has continued to decrease due to the introduction
of stricter eligibility requirements for immigration to Hong Kong. The
numbers of teaching qualification applications from the EDB and
individuals have also fallen. This may be caused by the decline in
student numbers in local public schools.

Place of Award of Qualifications

The United Kingdom and Mainland China remained the two major
countries of awards for our assessment services. In recent years
the numbers of qualifications from Mainland China, Taiwan and
the Philippines have grown at a greater rate than those of all other
countries/areas.

Enhanced Public Awareness of Qualifications
Assessment Service

There has been an ongoing interest from the public in regard to the
recognition of non-local qualifications which shows the importance
of qualifications assessment service. Last year, we continued to
reach out to the community to enhance public understanding of our
principles and processes in conducting qualifications assessment.
We delivered talks to various stakeholders in both the public and
private education sectors; and made available information on our
service to a local organisation that publishes booklets to provide
students with information about study opportunities.

B iE K IR

BEMGERZER - E2RMEAR
ABEEBRZ—RAZIHE - BH
REKBEER 2 » Rt - £F
K B R e R A (BN BIFR B84 TR PR A
BR - B0REAZHNLZEREE R
FEMEBERAR - 5— 0@ > ARNE
BEFWEARERER - KREEFA
A AEF B (QMAS) ) R 55 28 B FRAE R
Do RMATBRBEABTE - 75
AL EBURAHE B R AR ERIIE
B2 EABRFHRB B TE -

B BRI E

EHEREENSENAERS - HE
MABDAERZE - 0F KEF
C BB RIFRENEEMERE 218
R EMBER, SR AK

125 AR EEE IR
323
RBALT—HIFFEIFEAEER
& BRATEEMERBNERIE -
EFRMEBEAMR - AARRERS
FERH AR RRIMEF o B EREEI AN
SHEWBREPERE - ARE—PIAH
WRERHBENAER - BZMAERM
HRE RSB R H)/ MEFH -
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Qualifications Assessment L4

Authentication of Degree Certificates of
Qualifications

HKCAAVQ continued to work closely with awarding institutions to
authenticate applicants’ qualifications. Last year, we identified two
cases of fake qualifications which were reported to the Hong Kong
Police for follow-up, as compared to three similar cases in the past
reporting period.

Reasons for Non-assessable Qualifications
Assessment

Although the number of qualifications assessed and considered by
the HKCAAVQ as meeting the standard of comparable qualifications
under HKQF is high; there is a large number of applications that
include qualifications not assessable by HKCAAVQ for a number
of reasons. In the reporting period, there were 167 qualifications
assessment applications that were not assessed due to (a) the
qualifications not being recognised in the home countries/areas; (b)
the qualifications were fake; (c) the applicants were unable to provide
sufficient information; and (d) the applicants voluntarily decided to
withdraw their applications.

Major Developments

As part of HKCAAVQ practice to benchmark against international
best practice, HKCAAVQ has started developing Country/Area
Profiles (CAPs). The CAPs contain comprehensive information on
selected countries/areas’ education systems/qualifications and serve
as an assessment tool. They have greatly enhanced the efficiency
and effectiveness of our qualifications assessment work. At the time
of reporting, the CAPs for Australia, Canada, Mainland China, New
Zealand, South Africa, Taiwan, the United Kingdom and the United
States of America had been finalised.
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Qualifications Assessment 285G

The review of the QA Service and the QA guidelines undertaken by
a Task Group established by the HKCAAVQ Council was completed
in March 2016. The Task Group comprised local and international
Council members and external experts, a representative from
the EDB and the Executive Director of HKCAAVQ. The revised
Quialifications Assessment guidelines that incorporate HKCAAVQ's
CAPs took effect on 1 July 2016. This has strengthened the
assessment of educational qualifications and enabled HKCAAVQ to
consider other forms of recognised prior learning as well as adopting
more award titles under HKQF as assessment outcomes.

To further support our qualifications assessment service and ensure
consistency of its outcomes, HKCAAVQ has deployed the computer
system module of HKCAAVQ’s Quality Management System (QMS)
for qualifications assessment to provide an integrated IT platform that
streamlined many of the administrative work processes, facilitates
the tracking of assessment work as well as provides a secure
environment for the storage/retrieval of application/assessment
related data. To further streamline and improve the work processes,
HKCAAVQ will introduce a web-portal to allow applicants to submit
their applications online. The web-portal will make the service more
effective and it is expected to be launched in the first quarter of 2018.

Future Developments/Priorities

With the CAPs firmly established as the main assessment tool
and information source for HKCAAVQ’s qualifications assessment
Service, HKCAAVQ will continue to focus on the ongoing research
and development of CAPs. In particular, we will continue to devote
time and resources to maintain and update the existing CAPs and
seek new opportunities/collaborations to develop new ones to align
with the latest local and international educational developments.
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register

SERENESESH

The Qualifications Register (QR), the public face of the Qualifications
Framework (QF), is an online database that provides information
on qualifications, the associated programmes and providers, and
helps learners make informed choices on how to select suitable
programmes and plan their progression pathways.

HKCAAVQ performs the statutory role as the QR Authority, and is

responsible for the development, and maintenance of the QR for the
support of QF.

Key Figures

EFEMEEERENARNE » 1S
LERERREBER  EERIENE
FEEMENER - HEEEEEERE
Ko A8 8B A S B S BS 1E h AN IS Ay 3%
e

HEREEERERAMERMNAEAS

BEHR  BE[EEAM] RAEE
AR ©

FTEHF

Management of QR Records & & &} ;0 2 & 18

No. of Qualifications on QR 2015-16 7
BERZM LM EREE 7

8,063

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

QR Hit Rate (Annual Growth) 2015-16 0
BEEMEER(FEER) (0]

" 24%

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

No. of QR Batches Uploaded 2015-16
LR R e BURA R B y

= 1,219

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Advertisement

BRERRENREEEHAE

No. of Misleading QF Related T 1
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register & FE2L#E & & FE -3

Management of QR Records EF & 242 &
Number of Qualifications on QR &AFE £t FREFEEE

By Operator Type of Accreditation Status:
REPENTERRE D
HKCAAVQ-accredited Operators 45 5T 2 BrF B0 & P&
PAA Operators  EHZRI S ERTEE R EIHE
Assessment Agencies FH(HiE
Self-accrediting Operators B 1TRFERE I &
By QF Level: IZEREEARINED
QF Levels 1-4 BREZREBEFE1Z4H
QF Levels 5-7 BREEBESZTH
By CAT Arrangement and

by Operator Type of Accreditation Status:
RB D RRERBBRLTHRIREIE T ERRE D
CAT (Programme) B2 RF8 K887 (:R12)
Self-accrediting Operators B 1TRFERE i &
HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA Operators
KAERIELAGENSBENEERNEHE
CAT (Institutional) 225 278 ¥ (FrR)
Self-accrediting Operators B 1TaFEH &M E
HKCAAVQ-accredited and PAA Operators
KAERTELEBENGETEERNEHE
QR Hit Rate (Number) &FEA 2R (BHES)
QR Hit Rate (Annual Growth) &AEAMEER(FHBRE)
Number of QR Batches Uploaded
FEHREREMeBIRAS A

Number of Misleading QF Related Advertisement
BRAERRENREESHAE

2015/16
7,638

3,956

698
2,984

5,389
2,249

46
46

940
811
129

1,673,087
30%
1,175

2016/17
8,063

3,786
547
651

3,079

5,755
2,308

57
52

1,002
803
199

1,941,471
23%
1,215
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register & FEZ24E &k & FE2

Major Developments

QR Re-organisation 2016: Incorporation of
Sub-Area and “Quality Assurance” Status
(Phase Two)

The re-classification of the Areas of Study and Training as endorsed
by the Liaison Committee on Quality Assurance took effect in January
2016. HKCAAVQ in its capacity as the QR Authority has effected
the changes to the QR in two phases, i.e. in March 2016 and June
2016. Since then, a QR record incorporates both the sub-area and
“Quality Assurance” status of an operator. Sub-area is a second-
tier classification under Area of Study and Training. The data field
for Quality Assurance (QA) status is designed to differentiate an
operator’s accreditation status (e.g. Self-accrediting, HKCAAVQ-
accredited and Programme Area Accreditation) to facilitate the QR
Authority’s vetting process and the compilation of QR statistics. More
details can be found here: nttp://www.hkar.gov.hk/HKQRPRD/web/
nkar-en/help/Search_Qualification.

Quality Enhancement Support Scheme (QESS)
Project on Credit Accumulation and Transfer
(CAT) Centralised Database on QR

The QR has been recognised as one of the main sources of
information on Credit Accumulation and Transfer (CAT) arrangements
for quality assured qualifications over the years. With a greater
publicity effort by both the QR Authority and EDB, an increasing
participation in the CAT arrangements from the Vocational Education
and Training (VPET) sector is anticipated. This in tumn is expected to
facilitate learner mobility and progression, and the development of a
wider range of flexible training and vocational qualification pathways
for the workforce of Hong Kong.
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Funded by the Government’s Quality Enhancement Support Scheme,
HKCAAVQ has in November 2016 launched a project to create a
centralised database to capture Credit Accumulation and Transfer
(CAT) information and articulation arrangements on the QR. This
CAT centralised database, will be a new function on the QR, and will
include a dedicated search facility offering various interactive features.

An Advisory Group has been formed to provide professional
advice from the policy-maker and operators. The membership of
the Advisory Group comprises representatives from four selected
operators from both the self-accrediting and HKCAAVQ-accredited
sectors and the Qualifications Framework Secretariat (QFS). We
expect to complete the project in October 2018.

New Arrangements on Programme
Registration on QR

Following the cessation of the QR endorsement role of Joint
Quality Review Committee (JQRC), the Self-financing Sub-degree
Programme Units (SSPUs) of the University Grants Committee
(UGC)-funded institutions has since 1 November 2016 been able to
register their Self-financing Sub-degree (SFSD) programmes directly
on the QR.

Improved Service Commitment to QR Records
Vetting

To further raise our service commitment, effective from September
2016, the timelines for the vetting of QR entries of the self-accrediting
sector has been shortened from 15 to 10 working days and those of
the HKCAAVQ-accredited operators from eight to six working days if
the uploaded data are consistent and accurate.
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Qualifications Framework and Qualifications Register & FEZ24E & B FE2

Future Developments/Priorities

Indication of Qualifications’ Industry and
Branch on QR

“Industry” and “Branch” are two essential and inter-related data fields
of a qualification on the QR and searchable via a search facility on the
QR. The two data fields are of particular relevance to vocational and
professional qualifications and their associated learning programmes.
Specification of the relevant industry(ies) and branch(es) of a
qualification is included on the QR to enhance transparency of the
relevance of qualifications to learners.

Effective 1 April 2017, HKCAAVQ requires new learning programmes
to indicate the relevant industries and branches of their respective
qualifications on the QR as far as practicable. As for existing learning
programmes on the QR, a phase-in approach for the indication of
industries and branches will be adopted and the process is expected
to be completed by 1 July 2017. A maximum of 10 industries and 30
branches can be indicated on each QR record.
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Research, Training & Consultancy

S

HKCAAVQ conducts research of trends and developments in quality
assurance theories and practices to ensure that its accreditation
standards and processes are up-to-date and robust. Research
findings are regularly shared with operators, specialists and staff
of HKCAAVQ through training and capacity building activities.
HKCAAVQ also provides consultancy and quality assurance services
for the education and training community in Hong Kong and
internationally.

Key Figures

& olll Bz BRI AR #5
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Appointed Specialists 2015-16
HERER
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Capacity Building of
Operators, Specialists

2015-16
sessions’%
and Staff
My | EEsT . Bb S 4
“iE - BX - BEr 2015-16 859

EIEE
During the reporting period, HKCAAVQ expanded the Register of
Specialists to cover a full range of industries and Areas of Study and
Training to support accreditation activities and other business needs.
Scheduled regular and thematic training workshops were provided
to meet the varied training needs of operators, specialists, staff of
HKCAAVQ.

participants A

Major Developments

Appointment and Engagement of Specialists

Peer review is one of the guiding principles of HKCAAVQ and is at the
heart of our accreditation process. HKCAAVQ engages Specialists
to serve on accreditation panels and to advise on quality assurance
matters. To induct newly appointed Specialists, a Specialists
Appointment Ceremony was held on 15 April 2016 and was attended
by about 100 Specialists. Ms. Pecvin Yong, Principal Assistant
Secretary (Further Education) of the Education Bureau addressed
the gathering as the Guest of Honour. Ms. Yong emphasised that
the Government is currently working on different ways to promote
vocational and professional education and training (VPET). HKCAAVQ

2016-17
sessionsis
2016-17
participants A
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Research, Training & Consultancy 2% - 153l & BERIARFE

endeavours to work in concert with the Government, the VPET
sector, and our peers to promote quality assurance practices in
the development of the wide range of flexible training and career
pathways for our younger generation.

Publication of the Institutional Review Manual
for Private University Title

HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Education Bureau (EDB) to
develop a manual that includes information on both the standards
and process for Institutional Reviews for Private University Title
(IR). Based on the criteria laid down by EDB in the “Roadmap for
Becoming a Private University” and also taking into consideration
the feedback from key stakeholders, an Institutional Review Manual
for Private University Title was developed and published on the
HKCAAVQ website on 22 April 2016. The IR is a holistic assessment
of an institution’s overall effectiveness in pursuit of its mission and
vision, and whether a well-managed academic environment is in
place.

Capacity Building of Stakeholders

On a regular basis, HKCAAVQ conducts capacity building activities
to strengthen the capacity of operators and specialists in the light of
the developments in the education and training environment, and in
response to requests from client operators for specialised training.

A summary of the capacity building activities conducted during the
reporting period is provided below:
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46 capacity building activities for Specialists, Operators and Staff BT A6 EAER - SiiE LB BIRHE
involving 1164 participants HIEIIES) - 2 ,J\%(L 1164 A °

Stakeholders ##3#&
Specialists No. of sessions No. of participants
xR RPN SRAH

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Operators

No. of sessions No. of participants
e IS PY YN

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Staff No. of sessions No. of participants
=] EH5E EXUN 4

© 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

Total No. of sessions No. of participants
e SIS B Sl AR

In 2016, HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Education HE PR 2016 F ZitiTE AT L8
Bureau (EDB) to design and run a series of Workshops on Credit [ERERES ZRREBITES] -
Accumulation and Transfer (CAT). The Workshops aimed to help B2 INE R AR Fﬁﬂ(ﬁfﬂﬂl)ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
participants get acquainted with the CAT policy and principles TEMED RHERERRA - I %)t
promulgated by the Government, and help them reflect on the R NEE D ZIERER ZGMET
relevant considerations in establishing internal CAT system and B AR REEEZSE - TEREN
procedures. In total, eight workshops attended by 206 participants TIB TS - 54 PR - 206 AH
from 54 operators were held. J& o

HKCAAQ 59



Research, Training & Consultancy 2% - 153l 5 BERIARFE

HKCAAVQ systematically collects feedback to assess the BTREEIEER  STBRE RS
effectiveness of its capacity building activities. The data collected WRELXMENER - HEUEER 2
showed that the satisfaction of our clients has generally been MEOREEEBEMFHFELA 0
increasing over the past two years as illustrated in the graph below: TER :
Participants' view on the quality of the capacity building activities
of HKCAAVQ (2015-2017)
Mean SMELHIEREIEHNREE (2015-17)
Score*
5.0
4.8
4.6 458 4.52 4.53
- /
4.42
4.40
44 — 4.36 4.36
4.24 : 4.21 4.19 4.19
4.2 410
4.02
4.0 T T T T
Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16 Sep-16 Mar-17
=Specialists ==QOperators == Average

* BINEBE P EERSNEERE D
RIROSEAM - 5t [EEEmME - RRTIE
DEERN - | WRABREMAE  Bb

E1NMFEETRE -

* Mean score of capacity building activities is calculated from the participants’
degree of agreement with the statement “the overall quality of the event was
high” over the 6-month period prior to the reported month, where score 5
indicates “strongly agree” and score 1 indicates “strongly disagree”. DRIETAE
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Review of Accreditation Standards and
Criteria

HKCAAVQ announced in January 2016 the launch of the Review of
its Accreditation Standards and Criteria. The review will be completed
in 2018. The Standards used in the Four-stage QA process have
been in use since the launch of the Hong Kong Qualifications
Framework in 2008. Between April and June 2016, HKCAAVQ
issued a Discussion Paper and conducted a series of focus group
meetings with representatives from different stakeholder groups,
including academic and vocational operators, institutions registered
under the Post Secondary Colleges Ordinance (Cap. 320), non-local
programme operators, specialists with experience in accreditation
exercises of various nature, and staff of the HKCAAVQ.

Based on the desktop research and the views gathered from the
different stakeholder groups, 14 broad issues were identified that
have informed the drafting of revisions to the accreditation standards.
A common theme running through the 14 broad issues was that
operators need more guidance for assessing themselves against
the accreditation standards in their own specific contexts, and yet
HKCAAVQ’s accreditation standards cannot be overly prescriptive
given the wide range of operators and learning programmes that
come under HKCAAVQ'’s purview. Noting this challenge, the drafting
of revisions will aim to provide context-sensitive information for
more transparency and consistent application of the accreditation
standards by all users.

At the time of reporting, a Consultation Document incorporating a
summary of the issues and the draft revisions to the accreditation
standards was under preparation for open consultation that will last
until end of August, 2017.

To facilitate communication with stakeholders, and to keep them
informed about the progress of the review, a dedicated page on the
HKCAAVQ website has been created. Click here to learn more about
the Review, and to keep updated about the progress.
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HKCAAVQ commissioned by EDB to
conduct a number of projects:

Review of Generic Level Descriptors of the
Hong Kong Qualifications Framework

HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the Education Bureau in 2016
to review the Generic Level Descriptors (GLD) of the Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework (HKQF) and to develop Practical Tools
associated with the various purposes of the GLD, including education
and training, human resources management and benchmarking. This
is the first review after the launch of the HKQF and it is an important
milestone in the development of HKQF. The project deliverables
are aimed at supporting a wider use of the GLD and the tools by
stakeholders in the future. The project is expected to be completed in
November 2017.

HKCAAVQ envisages that the revised GLD and the revisions to be
made to HKCAAVQ'’s accreditation standards and criteria will be
helpful to the education and training sector to further promote quality
assurance practice and the development of internal quality assurance
capability in institutions.

Study on the Implementation of the Code of
Good Practices on Governance and Quality
Assurance for Self-financing Post-secondary
Education Sector

The Code of Good Practices on Governance and Quality Assurance
for the Self-financing Post-secondary Education Sector (the Code)
was, after acceptance by the EDB, promulgated by the Committee
on Self-financing Post-secondary Education (CSPE) in June 2015 for
voluntary adoption by the sector. The Code is designed to enhance
the quality, transparency and sustainable development of the sector.

In 2016 HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the EDB to review the
extent, impact and effectiveness of the implementation of the Code
of Good Practices on Governance and Quality Assurance for Self-
financing Post-secondary Education Sector (Code) one year after
its promulgation. Findings and observations from a desktop review,
survey and face-to-face interviews have been collated, analysed and
will be presented to the Committee on Self-financing Post-secondary
Education in mid-May 2017.
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Pilot Project on Phase Il of Exploratory
Study on Possible Alignment of Professional
Qualifications under the Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework

HKCAAVQ was commissioned by the EDB to conduct this
sequel study after our completion of the Phase | feasibility study
of alignment/recognition of professional qualifications under the
Hong Kong Qualifications Framework (HKQF) in 2015-16. The Pilot
Project is designed to test the application of the criteria, principles,
and procedures developed under Phase | for recognising and
benchmarking professional qualifications with HKQF. We expect to
complete the project by the end of 2017.

Pilot Study on Program Accreditation in Macao

HKCAAVQ provides consultancy services to organisations and
government bureaux both in and outside Hong Kong. For HKCAAVQ
to conduct projects outside of Hong Kong prior approval of the
Secretary for Education (SED) is required.

HKCAAVQ has conducted a pilot study on New Program
Accreditation to evaluate the effectiveness of the Guidelines
on Program Accreditation and those for use by external quality
assurance agencies for the Tertiary Education Services Office
(GAES) of the Government of Macao Special Administrative Region
(Macao SAR). Based on analysis from site visit observations, focus
group meetings and a survey of stakeholders, the guidelines were
refined and presented to GAES and the higher education institutions
in Macao. The final report of the pilot study was accepted by the
Government of Macao SAR in February 2017.

Future Developments/Priorities

As a key strategic direction, HKCAAVQ will continue to enhance
the capacity of operators and specialists through the development
of new training materials and thematic workshops. Specifically,
HKCAAVQ will develop a strategy to offer help to operators and
specialists to transition to the revised accreditation standards, and
to foster a culture of using information and data, for enhancement of
quality.

To contribute to and actively support developments in the national
and global quality assurance community, a training programme for
local and regional quality assurance professionals and institutions for
capacity building is under development, which is targeted to be ready
for enrolment in the last quarter of 2017.
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Engagement and Collaboration

HIMERFISIE

HKCAAVQ places prime importance on building strong links with
a wide range of stakeholders not only to keep abreast of the latest
developments in various sectors and industries, but also to share our
quality assurance practices with education and training institutions,
government authorities, partner agencies and members of the
public both locally and internationally. We support this strategic
objective by reaching out to stakeholders through dialogue and active
engagement.

Local Engagement

In addition to the engagement activities reported in relation to
individual business units, HKCAAVQ as an organisation reaches
out to new and potential client stakeholders and present our
services and work through organisation of focus group meetings
and briefing sessions as well as active participation in activities and
events hosted by partner organisations and the Government. Some
examples include, HKCAAVQ co-organisation with the Federation
for Self-financing Tertiary Education (FSTE) of a conference on the
topic ‘Enhancing the student learning experience’ in November
2016; participation in the UNESCO Global Network of Learning
Cities Symposium organised by the UNESCO-UNEVOC Centre
(Hong Kong) and UNESCO Institute for Lifelong Learning on 12
November 2016; conduct of a focus group meeting with operators
from the retail industry with a view to enhancing their understanding
of our accreditation standards and process, and strengthening the
capacity of vocational operators. In July 2016, HKCAAVQ launched
a corporate video on our website that presents to members of the
public our services and role to safeguard the quality of education and
training provisions in Hong Kong and support the development of the
HKQF.
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HKCAAVQ maintains close dialogue with representatives of
HKCAAVQ accredited operators, professional bodies, regulatory
authorities, government organisations that serve on our Liaison
Panels for the two accreditation units. The Liaison Panels meet on an
annual basis and more frequently as issues of mutual concern arise.
Agendas and meeting notes are published on HKCAAVQ website.
For details, refer to: https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/en/engagement/
local_engagement/liaison_panels.

It is a tradition that HKCAAVQ nurtures its close working relationship
with the quality assurance community in Hong Kong and reinforces
the mutual understanding of accreditation processes through the
hosting of annual operator briefings and annual dinners. On these
occasions, we cover a range of topics with the client operators and
specialists including our responses and measures taken to address
the feedback collected from them after the conduct of accreditation
and assessment activities. Since mid-2016, HKCAAVQ has also
published details of the new policies as approved by the HKCAAVQ
Council via its newsletters with a view to facilitating early preparation
on the part of our stakeholders in seeking our accreditation and
assessment services.
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International Engagement

HKCAAVQ builds partnership with ASQA

On 18 October 2016, HKCAAVQ and the Australian Skills Quality
Authority (ASQA) entered into a Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) to strengthen collaboration on quality assurance and regulatory
approaches with a particular focus on vocational and professional
education and training. The signing of the MoU marked a new
chapter in the development and work of HKCAAVQ after taking on
responsibility for the vocational sector in 2007. ASQA is the national
regulator for Australia’s vocational education and training (VET)
sector, and the first wholly VET regulator/quality assurance agency
with which HKCAAVQ enters into MoU. The MoU would enhance
mutual understanding of quality assurance and regulation of VET
provision in Australia and Hong Kong, and facilitate exchange of
information. For details of the MoU Signing Ceremony, refer to the
press statement published by ASQA.

—_—
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Representatives of the ASQA subsequently paid a visit to HKCAAVQ
on 3 November 2016 to share experience of ASQA’s audit
approach, use of online training material, deployment of IT systems
for transmission of information from operators and subsequent
management of data collected.

BN R EERF N 2016511 A3 H
BFER 2EZRENEZAR W
AR AR EEZINER - AR R E
IERGHEREFEENREBRES
REYE RS

Experience sharing between HKCAAVQ and
SSG

A delegation of SkillsFuture Singapore (SSG) visited HKCAAVQ on 14
December 2016. SkillsFuture is a national organisation established
by the Ministry of Education to promote lifelong learning by helping
individuals make well-informed choices in education, training and
careers; developing an integrated high-quality system of education
and training and promoting employers recognition and career
development based on skills and mastery. As a new organisation
SSG visited Hong Kong to learn from the experience of a number of
Hong Kong agencies and education institutions, including HKCAAVQ.
The representatives from SSG also shared with us the role and
emerging work of SSG. The two agencies exchanged information in
enhancing quality assurance in vocational and professional education
in the two jurisdictions.
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HKCAAVQ joined Cross-border Quality
Assurance Network

In January 2017 HKCAAVQ joined the Cross-border Quality
Assurance Network (CBQAN) as one of its founding members.
CBQAN is initiated by China Academic Degrees and Graduate
Education Development Center (CDGDC) and the Network consists
of 15 quality assurance and qualification recognition institutions from
12 countries and regions. CBQAN aims to improve the quality of
cross-border education, to build a communication and cooperation
platform for stakeholders of cross-border higher education quality
assurance in Asia and Europe, and to promote student and academic
mobility. The inaugural general assembly was held in December 2016
at the International Forum on Cross-border Education in Haikou in
Hainan Province, where the Deputy Executive Director (VPET) gave
a presentation on the topic “Two Decades of Quality Assurance of
Cross Border Education — Hong Kong Experience and Beyond” and
shared with participants the importance of cross border education
and the regulation and quality assurance of non-local programmes in
Hong Kong.

As part of HKCAAVQ's strategic initiatives, we aspire to become
as a key partner in the national and international quality assurance
community by establishing a professional standing and presence
through new or renewed Memorandum of Understanding in particular
with sister organisations in Mainland China.

Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ

s-border Higher Educati

= ‘éz :kgvzggh
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HKCAAVQ'’s collaborative initiatives under
QBBG

The expansion of the higher education sector through
internationalisation activities has been evident for more than two
decades. It has created several challenges for both institutions
and QA agencies. It is important that both institutions and the QA
agencies working internationally respond effectively to this expansion
and change, and address the challenges that arise through
internationalisation.

Quality Beyond Boundaries Group (QBBG) is a network of
international quality assurance agencies that has been formed to
address the growing quality assurance challenges and opportunities
associated with cross border higher education.

Being a member of QBBG, HKCAAVQ attended the annual meeting
in Melbourne, Australia, in October 2016. The QBBG members
committed in coming years to operate as a community of practice
with a view to establishing shared experiences on topics including
academic integrity, quality assurance of online education, and to
continue collaborating on reviews of institutions that are present
across the member jurisdictions.

The meeting in 2017 will be held in Hong Kong and hosted by
HKCAAVQ in the second half of the year.

HKCAAVQ and HEEACT

HKCAAVQ and the Higher Education Evaluation and Accreditation
Council of Taiwan (HEEACT) signed their second Memorandum
of Co-operation in November 2016. A delegation of HEEACT
subsequently paid a visit to HKCAAVQ on 9 February 2017.
The experience sharing particularly highlighted the similarity in
experiences and challenges of both agencies in conducting quality
assurance activities offshore, such as cultural differences and use of
language.
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Participation at events BEFEAINE B

HKCAAVQ staff regularly are invited to present keynote speeches FATERDR BB EZ AR E

and papers at local and international events. Papers presented by INEENT B R RBERIREXE - ARTE

staff are published on the HKCAAVQ website https://www.hkcaava. PRRERSNXECDNTIERIPER

edu.hk/en/publications. A list of the events attended are included in 7 : https://www.hkcaavg.edu.hk/zh/

the table below: publications ° & /EENZIFRMAT -

Title of presentation/ Theme of conference Presenter(s) Month/Year

ERER ERXE mE B/ %

“Global Think Tank on Transnational Education” Ms Dorte Kristoffersen, Executive Director of | 10/2016

at QBBG Meeting Melbourne HKCAAVQ

BMNBREA [EXEER | A82:% [ BRAE |72 BEE Dorte Kristoffersen 22+
B 29 e
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Title of presentation/ Theme of conference

Presenter(s)

B

Month/Year

REEE gRTE
APEC Quality Assurance in Online Education
Workshop

MR FRES
(37]

1R - MESEBERRET

Professor T C Pong, Professor of Computer
Science and Engineering of HKUST and
HKCAAVQ Council Member, and Dr Joe
Hong, Registrar (Academic Accreditation and
Assessment) of HKCAAVQ

BB ABHEURIE R TREZBEF
TERAEKEREEHIE  KTERTEE
(BT M) RE L

A/%E
11/2016

Ningbo-Hong Kong Educational Cooperation
Forum

EREBHEAERE

Ms Susanna Lee, Head of Consulting of
HKCAAVQ

APERBERERGAT I C L

11/2016

Brain Gain: Charting the Impact and Future
of Transnational Higher Edzucation at The
Observatory on Borderless Higher Education
(OBHE) Conference

KRR BERSHENTE
BERASEYE %ﬂ%%ﬂ%ﬁk;ﬁ%

B IR

Mr Robert Fearnside, Deputy Executive
Director (Academic) of HKCAAVQ

e BRI 2% E (2117) Robert
Fearnside 7t £

11/2016

“The Role of Quality Assurance to Support Hong
Kong as a Learning City” at UNESCO Global
Network of Learning Cities Symposium

BEBHBXAB BB M BRI S
[EZREBFHEBERBEURMHIEAS ]

Ms Dorte Kristoffersen, Executive Director of
HKCAAVQ

13 5425 = Dorte Kristoffersen 2+

11/2016

“QA and Governance of Higher Education in
Local and Non-local Institutions in Hong Kong —
Does It Work?” at HEEACT & TAIR International
Conference

BEREHETET L RRBEHAE
G5 [BERHEIER S
EEMATTIE]

e EEK
EHAMERREM

Ms Dorte Kristoffersen, Executive Director of
HKCAAVQ

2T 3E 548 E = Dorte Kristoffersen Z+

11/2016

The Self-Assessment Report — What makes a
report a Good report?” at Quality Assurance
Agency reviews in ASEAN Countries

REoERBEERRERESE [ ARIER
EAHEHNEE]

Ms Dorte Kristoffersen, Executive Director of
HKCAAVQ

128 342 % Dorte Kristoffersen Z +

11/2016
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Engagement and Collaboration #INE&FS/E

Title of presentation/ Theme of conference

REBEE gRTE
“The Use of Quality Management System in
Enhancing the Quality Assurance Process” at
International Conference on “The New Frontiers
of Teaching and Learning Quality Assurance in
Higher Education”

SEHE - HEBEZRINLERERHE(E
=iReE  AREERFNER]

Presenter(s)
HEE
Ms Helen Yau, Registrar (Vocational and
Professional Accreditation) of HKCAAVQ

FERIETE(BELEXREENE) S
#E/)ME

Month/Year
A/ %
11/2016

“Two Decades of Quality Assurance of Cross
Border Education: Hong Kong Experience and

Dr Sandra Wong, Deputy Executive Director
(VPET) of HKCAAVQ

12/2016

Beyond” at China International Forum on Cross-
border Education

T E-FENERNRE

FRERRE-BERE [AXRELEREHE | HERIARERESTHE)IRREL

Conference

BERFRE  BBMEFIHEZRME ]

017 HEHEEERERBRBRESE [BE | FERHEIEBE(2117) Robert Fearnside 54

“Cross-border Quality Assurance: Case study | Mr Robert Fearnside, Deputy Executive|2/2017
of Hong Kong and Macau” at 2017 INQAAHE | Director (Academic) of HKCAAVQ

Future Developments/Priorities

As set out in the HKCAAVQ Strategic Plan 2015-2019, we aim to
contribute to and actively support developments in the national
and global quality assurance community. In order to support the
achievement of this aim, we will seek to implement reviews with
QBBG members for institutions operating in more than one member
economies. This will enhance the effectiveness of accreditation of
education and training provisions that take place across jurisdictions
and benefit institutions as well as HKCAAVQ.

On the local engagement front, HKCAAVQ recognises the increasing
diversity of client operators and continues to reach out to present
our services and work. More diverse engagement initiatives will be
developed such as strengthening of stakeholder engagement through
new and alternative communication means and engagement with
new stakeholder groups most prominently students; and continued
strengthening of transparency supported by a revamped website.

Accreditation ® Assessment e Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Financial Report

AIT5ERES

Independent Auditor’s Report
BIIRHEIRSEE

TO THE COUNCIL MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG COUNCIL FOR ACCREDITATION OF

ACADEMIC AND VOCATIONAL QUALIFICATIONS
ERBMRBRXERTER

(Established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of
Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Council
for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (the
“Council”) set out on pages 78 to 118, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2017, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Accreditation ® Assessment e Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Financial Report RS

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Other Information

The council members are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Council Members
and Those Charged with Governance
for the Financial Statements

The council members are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the
council members determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the council members are
responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
council members either intend to liquidate the Council or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Council’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
BIMEMRSE(E)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 15 of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic
and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance (Cap.1150), and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the council members.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the council members’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Council to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 September 2017
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

TENGER
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ -2 —+F=A=+—HItFE
NOTES Htit 2017 2016
HKS$ #&% HKS &%
Income WA
Accreditation fees 7725 & 53,480,250 52,842,290
Advisory and consultancy fees 74 5A A1/ ] & 21,985,726 22,283,104
Qualifications assessment fees & 5114 & 9,115,157 8,708,233
Qualifications registry fees & it & 2,927,563 2,943,955
Government grants B i B 7,268,371 7,105,819
Investment income & & A 5 897,751 725,012
Other income E A A 6 32,372 31,378
95,707,190 94,639,791
Expenditures Xt i
Staff costs 8 TR (63,342,861)  (60,207,787)
Administrative expenses 1T E (13,250,357) (16,703,053
Direct accreditation/consultancy costs & # #F5 8 5k 4 (11,195,386) (11,625,120
Council meeting and committee expenses NF @R EE @ H (946,780) (885,383)
(88,735,384) (89,421,343)
Surplus for the year 4~ F E 2tk 7 6,971,806 5,218,448
Other comprehensive income (expense) Efth 2 E U2 (2 H)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
HIZA e ES 7 E 1B E A -
Avalilable-for-sale equity security: A] {f H &R AR ZE % :
Changes in fair value recognised during the year
REECHRAABENE 1,982,200 (2,477,750)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year
AEEEHMEEmKE(EH) 1,982,200 (2,477,750)
Total comprehensive income for the year
AFEEXHEHBRSE 8,954,006 2,740,698

Accreditation ® Assessment ® Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Statement of Financial Position
IR R

At 31 March 2017 R =ZF—+F=A=+—H

NOTES K1t 2017 2016
HK$ & HK$ &

Non-current assets FEREE &
Fixed assets Bl E & E 9 7,310,383 8,342,005
Investments 1% & 10 14,254,350 12,272,150

21,564,733 20,614,155

Current assets REIEE

Investment &£ & 10 - 1,027,734
Accounts and other receivables J&U BR 3t A1 E b & Y5k 11 13,868,634 9,154,578
Bank deposits and cash $R1TFRNIE® 12 62,739,143 65,506,342

76,607,777 75,688,654

Current liabilities REI S &

Deferred government grants iE i B AT 4 BS 13 2,086,334 3,462,211
Deferred revenue #EEH A 14 14,908,302 19,221,111
Other payables and accruals Efth fE 15 BR 3% & fE 5+ & 2,998,975 5,277,585
Provision for staff gratuities & T %7 Bl %4 15 3,688,577 3,622,749

23,682,188 31,683,656

Net current assets B/ EE FE 52,925,589 44,104,998

Total assets less current liabilities EEA B RE & & 74,490,322 64,719,153

Reserves fi#% 16

Accumulated surpluses 23t & & 65,279,997 58,308,191

Investment revaluation reserve & & {f {#E 643,660 (1,338,540)

Total reserves #E#EXE 65,923,657 56,969,651

Non-current liabilities JE R B & &

Deferred government grants i 2 /i # B 13 5,850,277 5,344,361

Provision for staff gratuities & T 475 Bl 24 15 2,716,388 2,405,141
8,566,665 7,749,502

74,490,322 64,719,153

The financial statements on pages 78 to 118 were approved and RRRZE—tEFNANAHEL R
authorised for issue by the Council on 8 September 2017 and are FIEEE R E 78?1185297@%&% i
signed on its behalf by: A TIATRESE

\Meolhun____ b Bl

Chairman Z /& Executive Director #8# %
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Statement of Changes in Reserves
FBirgax

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HItFE

Investment
Accumulated revaluation
surpluses reserve Total
ZEtAs REEMEHE &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
ot B s
At 1 April 2015 72 2015F 4 A1 H 53,089,743 1,139,210 54,228,953
Surplus for the year AN Z 84 5,218,448 - 5,218,448
Other comprehensive expense for the year AN & Hith 2 3% H - (2,477,750) (2,477,750)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year
REEE2ERE(ZH)EF 5,218,448 (2,477,750) 2,740,698
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016
MR20164F3 A31 HM2016F4 A1H 58,308,191 (1,338,540) 56,969,651
Surplus for the year NFE &4 6,971,806 - 6,971,806
Other comprehensive income for the year A4 & E fth 2 Ui z§ - 1,982,200 1,982,200
Total comprehensive income for the year NEE EE KR AT 6,971,806 1,982,200 8,954,006
At 31 March 2017 7220173 A 31 H 65,279,997 643,660 65,923,657

Accreditation ® Assessment ® Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Statement of Cash Flows
REREBEK

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

NOTE fizt 2017 2016
HK$ & HKS &%
Surplus for the year A4 fE B84 6,971,806 5,218,448
Adjustments for: FHEIEF :
Depreciation #7& 6,331,427 9,475,451
Dividend income % 2 A (454,740) (472,230)
Interest income F BU A (443,011) (252,782)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & B E & E W et (1,910) (2,850)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
LEETHAINLERenE 12,403,572 13,966,037
Increase in accounts and other receivables F& U BE 2 A0 E & U 2k 3% A0 (4,793,859) (2,050,335)
Decrease in deferred government grants 5 2E B £ 7 Bk (869,961) (1,537,721)
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue FEIEU A G4 ) 1 1 (4,312,809) 12,339,970
Decrease in other payables and accruals E th & 1< BE Zk A0 fE =+ & R > (2,278,610) (579,960)
Increase in provision for staff gratuities & T 475 EM & S #5121 377,075 1,463,741
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RETHMBHRLFE 525,408 23,601,732
INVESTING ACTIVITIES & EE)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets B A & & & E 5k (5,299,805) (735,614)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets & [EF & & 11528 1,910 6,690
Proceeds from disposal of held to maturity investment
HER/REZ D EIRESRIE 1,000,000 -
Decrease in bank deposits with maturity of more than
three months at acquisition
e AR = A A LA B ERR IR T ROR 2 25,968 2,032,960
Interest received 2 4 F & 550,548 316,290
Dividend received 2 UH% & 454,740 472,230
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
REZB (TR EENRSFE (3,266,639) 2,092,556
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRREEEWORD)EINFE (2,741,231) 25,694,288

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
FURERESEEY 47,452,019 21,757,731

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
FERESRELEEY 12 44,710,788 47,452,019
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRS IR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - ZF—+F=A=+—HIFE

1.

STATUS OF THE COUNCIL

Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualifications (the “Council”) is a body corporate
established under the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance. Under
the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
Ordinance (Cap. 592) (the “Ordinance”) the Council
assumes its statutory role as the Accreditation Authority and
Qualification Registry (“QR”) Authority under the Qualifications
Framework (“QF”). As the Accreditation Authority, the
Council is responsible for developing and implementing the
standards and mechanisms for accreditation of academic and
vocational qualifications to underpin the QF and for organising
the accreditation exercises for the purposes as specified
in the Ordinance. The Council also provides advice to the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “HKSAR Government”) on the registration of non-local
academic and professional courses, the assessment on non-
local qualifications and also on educational standards and
qualifications generally. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, all other
Members and Executive Director of the Council are appointed
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR Government. Also, the
determination of accreditation fees, the financial budget and
other operating policies of the Council are approved by the
HKSAR Government. Therefore the Council considers itself to
be a government-related entity.

The registered office address is 10 Siu Sai Wan Road, Chai
Wan, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Council.
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Financial Report FFEME

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RA RS R R P & (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFIREERE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG BRBREEN(E
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B ELER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are A F E AL M EIEET
mandatorily effective for the current year EBMBEHRELELD
The Council has applied the following amendments to RAFE  ARERXFEAUTH
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public EhestE A A@Em T IEBEE
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year: B BHREZER
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of BEMBREENE  UBALEBERN
Interests in Joint Operations NE(ETE) 2HEE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative EresbEAE 1% BEHE
(EB3T%)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Clarification of Acceptable EAEERE16% MERBENTER
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and RERGTERNE FEREE
Amortisation 3BH(BFIA)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants RASHENE16S RBE: £EMEY
and HKAS 41 REBGHEAS
AR(BITA)
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BEeIENET S BUMBRRNER
Financial Statements (BFIK) &
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying ERNBREENE REEER ERAHA
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 the Consolidation Exception 0% E120%EE BOOIMER
BEEE 285
(B3TX)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ=F—+F=A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Council’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Council has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment

Transactions?

Accreditation ® Assessment e Consultancy e Training ® Qualifications Register
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RA RS TR R Pl & (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFRIREERTE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG BUMEHREEN(E
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B ELER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (&)
New and amendrr_lents to _HKFRSs in issue C JEME{B 14 4 R B EET
but not yet effective (continued) RIS E BB REE
A (4&)
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BRI 2R EREBIBREE
Instruments with HKFRS 4 FAR(BETR) BIERERT AR
Insurance Contracts? By HEERE
FARRBAR?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets AN REENE REERABENF
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its 10K RAELHE FAE DM
Associate or Joint Venture? QlEos%(lETA) EEMELTE!
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative BEGHENETE  BEE
(B3TK)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred RREHENE12S  RERBBOELH
Tax Assets for Unrealised (B3iTK) GREENED
Losses!
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BBHRHEED BEMBHREEN =
HKFRSs Standards 2014- (E:T) T-NEZE-F
2016 Cycle® —NEREER
s
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RZE—+F—HF—HBzxE
January 2017 1& 75 EYF [ BRI A 3
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE—NF—A—HBHzxE
January 2018 1& 75 8YF [ BRI A 3
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 8 RZE—hF—A—BzxE
January 2019 1& 75 EYF [ BRI A 3
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 4 RETHEMREENE
to be determined JE HARS A K
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 5 BERR_ZE—+F—HF—
January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate A= —N\F—H—H3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS AR R & (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ -2 —+F=A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

° In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Council’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2017, application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a impact on the classification
and measurement of the Council’s financial assets. In addition,
the expected credit loss model may result in early provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Council’s financial assets measured at amortized cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.

2.

FE R RAEIBRT &
AMBHREEN(F
R B®EER])
(&)

BRI BHREERE IR
SHMITA(E)

s HNEMEEIREME &
ARG ERERAT
REELEERBRRAFE
R BEPHEHREERE
IR ERAHEEEIER
AEHE - BHEEERER
REBBNE MRS B BKE
HEEBEBRRZEHEMEE
EBiEZEPAR  URBE
Rk B IaTHERIAR 2 &
BemEL BABFELE
EEEHTHEAEERSE -

BREABRBLEI-_ZT—tF=A
ET-HNeRMIARERER
B&E - RREABBMHRESE
AIENFAIBEEHARZERME
EDBELEELERE - R
B EERBREA TS ERY
KERREHKAFENEREE
REARHRERARBEENEERER -

BEMBHREENEA15
HREFEHKA

B BRMEERIE SR HE—
RE-2EARAKEBRESE
BEPEHMEENKREAR - R
EAVHREEREAGTHE LR
% EBBAREHENELES
R85 [ W] - BEGFE
AI5E 11 5% [ 125 A 4 | RiARRE
M iR e S

HKCAAQ &7



Financial Report A #RE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS AR R &E (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FER#HEI REIZETE

88

AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The council members anticipate that the application of HKFRS
15 in the future may have impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Council’s financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Council performs a detailed
review.

Except as described above, the council members do not
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs will have a material impact on amounts reported in the
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in the financial
statements of the Council.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, the collective term which includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FIFE IR EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z —Z—+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Council takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Council and the amount of
revenue and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) fees for rendering of accreditation services to institutions
are recognised in the period to the extent the
accreditation work is performed;

(i)  advisory fees and consultancy fees are recognised in the
period in which such services are rendered;

(i)  fees for rendering of qualifications assessment services
are recognised in the period in which such assessment
work is completed;

(iv)  qualifications registry fees are recognised in the period in
which such services are rendered;
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92

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Council and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Council
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Council will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Council
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Council should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred revenue in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Council with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining term of

the lease
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - ZF—+F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Council reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Council estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in used (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Council as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

The Council is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue
of section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Council has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Council will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Council’s financial assets are classified held-to-maturity
investment, available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Council has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

M EWAMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 # = —

tF=ZA=+t—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by the Council that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognized in profit or loss when the Council’s right to receive
the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including accounts and other
receivables and bank deposits and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy in respect of on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FAFS AP & (88)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - ZF—+F=/F=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as accounts
receivables, assets are that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Council’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When an account receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

Accreditation ® Assessment ® Consultancy ® Training ® Qualifications Register

TESFEE(E)
SMIA(E)
SHEE M)

EREEABERETR ()

P& Wi B SR TR B 4 AT 1 7 SR BRI RL
ENETEREERR - BIMNZ
EREBETRENE - B

FHANEBRMER RN SRR
BEBEYRRER  EE AR
EREBAGEE RN REOEM

AR SRR A R 2 E
sl I3 KB AR LB R

ML EER AR EREE
mE - BEBESRREENK
HERREHEENIRERNE
BB ARARRESRERER
E@%%EEEM\

BRENEFNERES S BREE
BRIFMAIRSN  FRESREER
HEBEeEENEREENK
T B FORL © 11 P KRR SRR AR /5
R - W#%ﬁ%%%°m
Eél&@ B i 5H RO BOR - RIGE
AR - %ﬁ%%%ﬁ@ )
KB ATER ©

WA E SR EERFERE
SRR E M2 ARERN R
SHRERELRENIEER D

BERE -



Financial Report AR S

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation
reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Council are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Council after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Council are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FAFS AP & (88)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - ZF—+F=/F=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

The Council’s financial liabilities, including other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Council’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale financial
asset

On assessing any impairment of the Council’s available-for-
sale financial asset, the Council evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment
is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. For the year ended 31
March 2017, no impairment was made on the available-for-sale
financial asset (2016: nil).
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INVESTMENT INCOME 5. REWA
2017 2016
HK$ & HKS$ &
Interest income F 2 A 443,011 252,782
Dividend income %8 YA 454,740 472,230
897,751 725,012
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS AR R &E (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ=F—+F=A=+—HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hftlg A
2017 2016
HK$ & HKS 5
Review of non-QF Accreditation 3F& 14 RIS EH B 8,402 7,750
Consultancy fee from external activities 4MEB/E ENHIEER & 15,512 19,711
Gain on disposal of fixed assets [EF & & H E W 1,910 2,850
Miscellaneous income E1th Yz A 6,548 1,067
32,372 31,378
7. SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 7. RNEERER
Surplus for the year has been arrived at after charging AKFERBKEMBGIA) ¢
(crediting):
2017 2016
HKS$ & HKS &
Salaries, wages and other benefits & « L& M H g7 61,763,818 58,657,937
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 3& 14 A FE 4 3L 1,579,043 1,549,851
Total staff costs 8 T X AN4EFE 63,342,861 60,207,788
Auditor’ s remuneration % £ Al M 5 238,480 187,650
Depreciation 78 6,331,427 9,475,451
Minimum lease payments under operating leases S{K&E LT E T H 120,023 95,462
Interest income from held-to-maturity debt securities
5B 22| BETEE S A S WA (16,066) (16,493)
8. TAXATION 8. 1\

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made
in these financial statements as the Council is exempted
from taxation pursuant to section 87 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FAFS AP &E ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

9. FIXED ASSETS 9. EEEE
Furniture
Leasehold and Computer
improvements equipment equipment Total

MENR  HREMZE EN Fek

HKS & HKS &1 HKS & HKS$ &
COST B &<
At 1 April 2015 7220154 81 R 31,028,553 6,613,935 3,862,650 41,505,138
Additions R E 55,000 548,337 132,277 735,614
Disposals H & - (43,539) - (43,533)
At 31 March 2016 72201643 A 31 H 31,083,553 7,118,739 3,994,927 42,197,219
Additions K& - 272,035 5,027,770 5,299,805
Disposals H& - (207,839) - (207,839)
At 31 March 2017 201743 A 31 H 31,083,553 7,182,935 9,022,697 47,289,185
ACCUMULATED

DEPRECIATION Z:H7 &

At 1 April 2015 7220155 4 A1 H 19,253,272 5,166,184 - 24,419,456
Charge for the year 7N E T8 7,886,854 789,612 798,985 9,475,451
Eliminated on disposals & & - (39,693) - (39,693)
At 31 March 2016 1420164 3 A 31 H 27,140,126 5,916,103 798,985 33,855,214
Charge for the year REEHTE 3,943,427 838,244 1,549,756 6,331,427
Eliminated on disposals & & -~ (207,839) - (207,839)
At 31 March 2017 14201743 A 31 H 31,083,553 6,546,508 2,348,741 39,978,802
NET BOOK VALUE R ZEE
At 31 March 2017 74201743 A 31 H - 636,427 6,673,956 7,310,383
At 31 March 2016 7420164 3 A 31 H 3,943,427 1,202,636 3,195,942 8,342,005
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

RI RS R R & (#8)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ =T —+F=A=+—HILFE
10. INVESTMENTS 10. ®&E
2017 2016
HKS$ &% HKS B ¥
Unlisted held-to-maturity debt securities, at amortised cost
SE F A R R EER B H REBHKA) - 1,027,734
Available-for-sale equity securities listed in Hong Kong,
at market value
EEE LTH A HEERAESF(RTE) 14,254,350 12,272,150
14,254,350 13,299,884
Analysed as: D174 :
Current i &) - 1,027,734
Non-current FE &) 14,254,350 12,272,150
14,254,350 13,299,884
Fair value of held-to-maturity debt securities
FEZIBEBESFNAAEE - 1,025,210

11. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER 11. B ERFX A H fn FE U

RECEIVABLES £

2017 2016

HK$ & HKS &

Accounts receivable &L BE X 10,599,298 5,205,846

Deposits, other receivables and prepayments &4  Hib U M FER 3,020,827 3,780,026

Interest receivable J&UF B 248,509 168,706

13,868,634 9,154,578
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

11. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take into account
the customer’s past payment history, financial position
and other factors. These accounts receivables are due on
presentation of billings. Normally, apart from certain customers
with good credit ratings, advances are requested from
customers to cover the service fee before rendering of services
by the Council.

Included in the Council’s accounts receivables are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$4,289,437 (2016:
HK$2,700,203) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Council has not provided for impairment
loss. The Council does not hold any collateral over these
balances. Based on the historical experiences of the Council,
those receivables that are past due but not impaired are
generally recoverable as there was no recent history of default
and there has not been a significant change in credit quality of
the customers.

Aging of accounts receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

11, BUWRFR A HAb FELL

(%)

AEeHEMmEBL —EHRE
ENEFPAEREENE - %ZEE
FEEEREFPLENMNKE
B MO R E A o L
FEM AR R R FER AR A » —
s - BRENEELERITH
BEPIN ARREHRBATGE
REPEMNRGER -

KR REWFIBESGAKRRES
M 4,080,437 TL(ZZ—NF 8
¥ 2,700,203 70 ) * 7% B UL BR XA
ERACHY  ARLERZSE
ERIEEEMAER - REABRB
s ERHRBETEREDN
JRE st B R B N 4 HE R BT B R
EEEE—HSFERES -

£ 780 BB 3 R0 B A9 FE W RR SR EY
AR

2017 2016
HK$ & HK$ B

Less than 1 month 11& A K 4,289,437 2,397,603
More than 1 month 1{& A A - 302,600
4,289,437 2,700,203
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS R R & (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

12. BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH

12. RITERREAE

2017 2016
HK$ & HK$ &

Deposits with banks #8777 EiTF 7k
Cash at bank and other financial institutions and in hand
e RIRITHE A BT K

42,337,752 21,673,211

20,401,391 43,833,131

Bank deposits and cash in the statement of financial position

MGIRRR PR RITE R NIR S

Less: Bank deposits with maturity of more than three
months at acquisition

W AR =8 A LA LRI BRI RITIE K

62,739,143 65,506,342

(18,028,355) (18,054,323)

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows

RenBRMTINREMREFEY

44,710,788 47,452,019

13. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

13. IEE BT BY
2017 2016

HK$ & HK$ &

Balance as at 1 April 24 A 1 By

Grants received and receivable B U 5 & Us 75 B

Interest thereon fE=TFI] &,

Recognised as income during the year £ R AW A

8,806,572 10,344,293

2,903,349 2,551,901
8,536 16,197

(3,781,846) (4,105,819)

Balance as at 31 March 723 A 31 HRV 464
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities
B RENBEE TS

7,936,611 8,806,572

(2,086,334) (3,462,211)

Amount shown under non-current liabilities

FERBBIEIR NATRA SRR

5,850,277 5,344,361

The grants are for supporting the costs of the Qualify
Enhancement Support Scheme projects and relocation costs of
the new office of the Council.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS IR &t (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

4. EFEWRA

ELERABFARREZFE - A
KA R AE A B R R 12
HERMARIMWIRNEEE I
HBRFRAEBRSBANS R

DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represents amounts billed or received for
programme accreditation, advice on the registration of non-
local courses and qualifications assessment, less amounts
recognised as income during the year.

PROVISION FOR STAFF

o

15. ET M &%

GRATUITIES
2017 2016

HKS$ & HKS$ &
Balance as at 1 April ¥4 A1 H 6,027,890 4,564,149
Provision made %4 4,917,803 4,521,553
Provision utilised & 24 (4,540,728) (3,057,812)
Balance as at 31 March A3 A 31 H 6,404,965 6,027,890
Less: Amount shown under current liabilities
B mEBEE NS (3,688,577) (3,622,749)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities
ERBEEIE NI SR 2,716,388 2,405,141

RESERVES

(@) Components of the Council’s reserves

The opening and closing balances of each component
of the Council’s reserves and reconciliation between
these amounts are set out in the statement of changes in
reserves.

(b) Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities held at the end of the reporting period and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 3.

16. &
(a) ZBEEEHER

B EE BN TR ARS
B B MR R -
SR ERESIRGEEES R
2 B8R FRBY 16 o

REEMHE

(b)

Txéiféﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ

EREEHE

s EFAFNARE
[EEERE “EJJ/%%E ZUETF
WufSE’JEn‘I'LBZ °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS AR R &E (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HItFE

17. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 17. EXE R EE
Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject HAKRBRIEEF R ESSHNT
to any externally imposed capital requirements, its primary AN E RESK - A A B8
financial and capital management objectives are to maintain BREREENTERIZRHEE
a balance between annual income and expenditure, so that it SFIW S Tl AR SEE
has the ability to operate as a going concern and perform its wEWB K mE L ETAE
statutory roles and functions. The Coundil is primarily financed W ANREITEERE - ABK
through the charging of fees for academic and vocational B F BRE IR S0 B
accreditation services rendered which include validations, EEFITERBUBRHNER A
revalidations, institutional reviews, qualifications assessments FREBEIEERE EEHE
and advisory/consultancy services. Any operating surplus shall it « BRI LA NTH B
be carried forward to the following financial year to meet future BRT - R ERMpBEFEES
expenditure required for the operations of the Coundil. BER VBT IFE - AR AR

REEMBONRX -

The Council’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior APHEERBEEFHET
years. The capital structure of the Council consists of cash and oo KW EARBERIEERES M
cash equivalents and accumulated surpluses. ReEBYRRARHR -
18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18. €@ T A
Categories of financial instruments SR ITEWNER
2017 2016

HK$ & HKS &1

Financial assets £ R E& &

Held-to-maturity investments 13578 = 2| HiR & - 1,027,734
Available-for-sales investments ] fi i &£18 & 14,254,350 12,272,150
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)

ERKEKFE(RERe RREEFEY) 73,963,520 71,364,405

88,217,870 84,664,289

Financial liabilities €@ 8 &
Amortised cost & #5AK Z 1,536,186 2,059,524
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Council’s major financial instruments include held-to-
maturity investment, available-for-sale investments, accounts
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Other price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price change risk arising from
its available-for-sale equity security listed in Hong Kong as
disclosed in note 10.

The Council’s equity investment is company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. This equity investment has been
chosen based on their longer term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 10%
(2016: 10%) higher/lower and all other variables held constant,
the investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$1,425,435 (2016: increase/decrease by HK$1,227,215)
for the Council as a result of the changes in fair value of the
available-for-sale investments.

18. €M T B (&)

BHEREEERERBE

TEHEZEcHTABREREE
FHRE JHEERE - B
AR N H A FE U FRIE ~ SRITE K
&fﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁéﬁ?ﬁllﬁ o ZER
%ﬂ‘ilﬂﬁ’\]ﬁ’%ﬁﬁ\%mﬁaw.ﬁﬁ
cHZELM T AEMMAER
a%m%—;ﬂ p(HMERRER)
FEERRETBESRR - B
Al PR R 5% SR B eV BR 51
ZZD—F° EREERENERZER
+ DA AR B] K2 B A0 A8 R FREX
EE‘Q HHE

i E R
A E18 A

RIEMFEI10RE - ARFEMRL
Al Hj'iﬂlei SR EEFSE
REB R

KBHRAZFLFRETDRNER
BEXZMLETHAR - ABE
KEELERERGERRENK
HUERE S - WEHERARR -

HEE DT
AT E DT HRIER S B
RETEZ W ERRERMEE

WEBESTANERE LR T
BE10% (ZZF—7NF 1 10%) BB
REMABARZHIFTE KB
NEREEHHEHEERTHEER
BNARBEZEM LA TB
711,425,435 TL(ZF—RF: k£
FH/ T EEA 227,215 7T) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
FAFS AP & (88)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z - ZF—+F=/F=+—HIFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The applied change of percentage represented management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in stock prices.
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Council’s surplus for the year and investment
revaluation reserve that would arise assuming that changes in
the market value had occurred at the balance sheet date and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Council which expose the Council to equity price
risk at balance sheet date. It is also assumed that none of the
Council’s available-for-sale equity security would be considered
impaired as a result of a decrease in the prices of respective
equity security and that all other variables remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2017, the Council’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Council due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
deposits and accounts receivables.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Council has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Council reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the council members
consider that the Council’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Accreditation ® Assessment ® Consultancy ® Training ® Qualifications Register
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BHEREEERERBE
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5 /E AR (AR)

B E T (E)

ERB LN ESREEEEHR
BIESEMEEEMT - kil
BRESNMBETIABAFERS
(B1E) ML E S FHEENAIRR
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HHLBREE  RSERNEN
SERAEERABMEEE N
=EXRBEROESETA o Lo
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AWt E -

EHEER
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BEENREE °

ABRFEEHNEERRETZKE
RITIERANELRK -

REREEERAR  ABRERE
E?El%,@\ %'JEEE\
R 1mﬁﬁt¢?&ﬁi\ﬁﬁ%%ﬁi
Hie (R R B BR 3 8 6 LA Uk /Bl i R
He Wi REREREHR
HESENESEEMNTRE
B BRATIWESIEELR
AMREBE- it E - AR
RERBARHEERBRE KR
PRI o



Financial Report AR S

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Council’'s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. At the end of
the reporting period, the Council had a certain concentration of
credit risk as 23% and 63% (2016: 40% and 82%) of the total
accounts receivables that were due from the largest customer
and the five largest customers.

Bank deposits are normally placed with financial institutions
which have good credit ratings. Investments in debt securities
are with counterparties of sound credit ratings. Given their high
credit ratings, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Council maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Council’'s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities is mainly repayable
on demand or within three months from the end of respective
reporting periods. In the opinion of council members, the
difference between the carrying amounts of the financial
liabilities and the undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Council can be required to pay is not
significant and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

18. €M T B (&)

BHEREEERERBE
(&)

=B EEE (&)

ABEABRHNEERRFESRE
HAEPHMRRFTFE o Nk Hf
R EARFESEFHEERR -/
23% K 63% (ZZF—7F 1 40% &
82%) B EUIR N E DRI B &
ARAKREF °

RITFFRBEFRREBRIEE
BB HHEE - NROER
EFREFRNEEBERIFEET
RORZETF - ERNERENE
B EREATRAELER
SEFETETHENEE -

mBEZEE

ERERBESRRME @ NEHE
REFB AR HE - ATRER
ERMABRESINERMH
BinthBRWAR ZRERE
AmesnsEeEMrRHZ

Esk o
RBERR AR BEENH
TAENIHEERHEREHKRE
BERE=EARNERE - AR
ERR - RABEEREEENRE
AREFHEERFTRASZE
BATEKR Bt REBE—
TRDITES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
RI RS R R & (#8)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #EZ =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Council
determines fair value of various financial assets.

(i) Fair value of the Council’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

The Council’s available-for-sale investment is measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair value
of this financial asset is determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and input used).

Far value as at

18. €T E (&)

B EMERE B FERBK
(&)

ST AL EETE

HHEREARIAEESEEE
BMEENAAER-

() REBUEEEURAEER
ENARTREE -

ARAHEHEREZRES
RZBREEE - TH
HOAEEHEREEND
REECLEZERANGE
TERBABIR) ©

Valuation technique
Fair value and key input

hierarchy HETER

AREER AREEESR FERAZE
Financial assets 2017 2016
TREE HK$ &1 HKS B#
Available-for-sale equity 14,254,350 12,272,150 Level 1 Quoted bid price
security E—E in an active market
A ERARE S ERTISPRE AE

There were no transfers into or out of Level 1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &% —

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

19.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(i)

Fair values of financial assets that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are
required):

Except as detailed in the following table, the council
members consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximate their fair values.

ﬁa‘ P aRacbit st (88)

—tF=A=+—HILFE

18. €T E (&)

B EREEERERBER
(&)

EHT RN A EEE(H)

(i) EEFUAIARBEFENS
MEE(BERHEERNAE
&) :

BRIRATR  ABKERA
EREV BRI EREE
MEpBENREEEREL
AR EERD -

2017 2016
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
IRESH AREE IRASRE NrEAE
HK$ &% HK$ &% HKS$ & HKS &%
Held-to-maturity debt securities
58 E 5 BB 5 - - 1,027,734 1,025,210

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Council had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

9. K HE&IE

RBERHKR - ABRET A
REHEARZARREHEER
TREH AT

2017 2016

HK$ & HKS /&%

Within one year —F A 12 5
In the second to fifth years inclusive £ —E2FE R F (HREMFERIEERN) 41 -
53 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ -2 —+F=A=+—HItFE

19. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

20

(continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Council for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an
average term of 5 years and rentals are fixed for an average of
5 years. The Council has an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions related to the provision of accreditation services
to organisations in which a member of the Council, key
management personnel and the HKSAR Government may have
an interest are conducted in the normal course of business and
in accordance with the Council’s fee charging policy and fee
schedule as prescribed by the Ordinance.

Except as disclosed in (iv) and (v) below, all transactions
related to the procurement of goods and services involving
organisations in which a member of the Council, key
management personnel and the HKSAR Government may have
an interest are conducted in the normal course of business
and in accordance with the Council’s financial obligations and
normal procurement procedures.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Council had the

following related party transactions:

(i) Honorarium paid to Council members in the capacity of

19.

20.

REHEARE(E)

REMENTBEEEARDEX M
MAENEE - BHRESHH]
EFARSFEH - AREEEEE
M AT B RETTER 5

BRELTRS

FEEAREEENE  BRE
BABMBIFA s r B HETT
MBS ZEBILE XKE
1 W IRABNE BRI
REGOIFTANER - BRI
BR -

BREATE (iv) B (v) TP EEE &SI - PR
BREAREFENE  BRER
ABMEBFA M ENEEETH
EmMRBR A E LT R E
15 WERRABNT R K
IER PRI FHETT ©

BRAMBRRAETENR S A
BN RRERBATEE SRS

() ABREAATED KR
B &

2017 2016
HK$ & HKS &
Non-local Council members JEZRIIER B 245,598 246,390

Local Council members are not remunerated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBI (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 -2 —+F = A=+—HIFE

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i)

20. BES X5 (/&)

(continued)
Key management personnel remuneration (i) FAREEAEMS
2017 2016
HK$ & HKS A5
Salaries and other emoluments %4 & E b B & 5,523,890 5,869,563
Retirement scheme contributions iE K524t 5k 13,500 24,000
5,537,390 5,893,563

(i)

Key management personnel comprise of the Executive
Director, Deputy Executive Director (Academic),
Deputy Executive Director (Vocational and Professional
Education and Training) and Financial Controller. The
above remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
7).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, approximately
19% (2016: 18%) of the Council’s total income
are derived from services provided to the HKSAR
Government, and approximately 17% (2016: 15%) of it
are derived from services provided to other government-
related entities. All the services are conducted in the
normal course of business and in accordance with
the Council’s fee charging policy and fee schedule as
prescribed by the Ordinance.

(i)

FRREEABBRREERSE
Blans(8M)  lanE
(BEETHE)NUB R
o LAMEFATEIX
AN 2HMEETIA -

2T+ F=/=1+—
ALLFE  ERBHANA
o #19% (B — K4
18%) 2R B A B AT 32 i AR
o 1T %(ZF —RF
15%) 2K & ) £ fth B /5 48 28
EREIRERE - 1A REY
BIEREBERE  WEIRR
A BE B U BR K (6151
RN EBRA -—BRHNE
}Eﬁ °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

M EWAMEE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z —Z—+F=A=+—HIFE

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(iv)

Effective from 1 September 2011, the Council has
entered into a lease with the HKSAR Government and
rented a vacant school premises in Siu Sai Wan Estate,
Chai Wan, Hong Kong at a charge of $1 per month as
its new office for an initial term of five years. The Council
completed the relocation of its office in July 2012. The
HKSAR Government also provided HK$10 million funding
support for conversion and renovation of the new office of
the Council (see note 13).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the HKSAR
Government also provided funding support of
approximately HK$400,000 (2016: HK$938,834) and
HK$1,760,000 (2016: HK$nIl), respectively, for phase
II'and Il of the Council’s IT infrastructure development
project, HK$15,846 (2016: HK$1,243,200) for the good
practices in quality assurance project, HK$3,000,000
(2016: HK$3,000,000) for the daily maintenance and
regular upgrading of the QR, HK$727,503 (2016: HK$nil)
for the quality enhancement supporting scheme, and
HK$486,525 (2016: HK$nil) for the review of accreditation
criteria and standards.
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(iv)

H-E——FNA—Hi-
ABREBFF] T —EAE
i AT ABEATAK
BB BLE N R —
=B 2RRE  fEBHH
MAZE - YIRHEEFHAR
Fo RPN -_ZE——F+A
TRRIRE o BUTBIRM T8
10008 tEE  BBA
BEERE AR AE IR
EEER(28ME13) -

HE_Z—tF=A=+—
HIEFE BB ED R
AERBNE ZRE=HE
R AREZBERMT
7 #.400,000T( = F — X
&£ B 038,834 ) B
4,760,000t — & — <
F:EETTTINES S
SN BRIBNAEEREE
B 7 815,846 L( =
T — N F 1,243,200
L) BB EEEMTH
BFER M ARG T B
3,000,00070( =& — /X F :
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Analysis of Expenditure

DM
For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 - —+F = A=+—HIFE
2017 2016
HK$ ;&% HKS
STAFF COSTS ET & A&

Salaries ¥ & 55,717,865 52,956,790
Allowances and other staff costs j28f & EAth & T A 7,624,996 7,250,997
63,342,861 60,207,787

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1T & A
Auditor’ s remuneration 1z SiAHE 4 238,480 187,650
Bank charges $R1TF/EE 21,983 34,392
Cleaning /52 & 439,655 539,591
Community relations #t [ B3 /& 36,784 44,576
Consultancy fees EER & 835,440 1,009,633
Depreciation 1€ 6,331,427 9,475,451
Incidental expenses Iz H 8,049 7,065
Insurance R 2 269,708 250,580
Legal advisory fees JA/EFL A E 371,022 742,368
Membership fee & 8 & 96,048 127,618
Others HAf 73,199 116,326
Overseas visits and conferences J8 %Mt 55 & 3% 230,292 243,468
Periodicals, newspapers and books EA | + S4EF1E A& 8,394 15,057
Photocopying &/ E1# 32,673 30,222
Postage E8& 21,604 34,908
Printing EN I & 143,570 157,780
Publicity S{##& 643,383 258,229
Recruitment and training 1852 & 153 57,645 66,647
Rent and rates 8 17 215,089 381,806
Repairs and maintenance #41{& M IR&E B 225,395 155,173
Securities transaction charges FF 45 E & & 2,525 5,050
Security (RZ 297,075 286,768
Stationery and consumables X B FSE 298,574 285,201
Telephone and facsimile E:EFEE & 350,629 411,758
Tools and equipment T EF& & 1,557,433 1,416,596
Transport and travelling 23R & 66,619 46,743
Utilities 7K + E & 227,843 221,832
Work related research T8RS 149,819 150,565
13,250,357 16,703,053
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Analysis of Expenditure (continued)
BT ()

For the year ended 31 March 2017 {2 -2 —+F = A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
HK$ & HK$ B

DIRECT ACCREDITATION/CONSULTANCY COSTS

BHETE ERERA
Accreditation costs FFE K4S 9,359,928 9,587,987
Qualifications Register costs & & it A A 1,835,458 2,037,133

11,195,386 11,625,120

COUNCIL MEETING AND COMMITTEE EXPENSES

rRERREEEXH
Air passages #2 410,765 272,555
Honorarium payments Bl <15 7% 245,598 246,390
Hotel accommodation & & {3 78 & 62,711 91,762
Working lunches and dinners ‘A %54 8 G &R Sz 157,596 193,582
Subsistence allowance A% 37,050 29,250
Transport and miscellaneous expenses 32 38 & N £ 33,060 51,844
946,780 885,383
TOTAL EXPENDITURE X 4858 88,735,384 89,421,343
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Terms of Reference of Committees

Qualifications and Accreditation Committee
(QAC)

Terms of Reference

(@ To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
accreditation policies, criteria and procedures relevant to
the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and
Vocational Qualification’s (HKCAAVQ) statutory roles as the
Accreditation Authority under the Qualifications Framework
and those relevant to non-QF-related accreditation/quality
assurance services.

(b)  To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
policies and procedures for maintaining the Qualifications
Register (QR) in fulfilment of HKCAAVQ's statutory roles as the
QR Authority.

() To consider and make recommendations to the Council on
policies, criteria and procedures for undertaking assessments in
regard to:

- Non-local courses
- Continuing Education Fund (CEF) reimbursable courses
- Continuing Professional Development (CPD) courses

- Individual qualifications
- Any other relevant activities

(d) To consider and advise the Council on any other matters
concerning or affecting HKCAAVQ'’s accreditation, assessment
and consulting services.

(e) To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within QAC’s remit as they arise.
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Appendix Bk

Finance Committee (FC)

Terms of reference

(@)

To consider and recommend, for the Council’s endorsement,
the annual budget of the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation
of Academic and Vocational Qualifications (HKCAAVQ),
including any subsequent adjustments thereof.

To consider the medium and long term financial plans of
HKCAAVQ.

To keep under review the financial position of HKCAAVQ,
including its return on investment and fee charging policy, and
make recommendations to the Council as appropriate.

To receive, consider and recommend, for the Council’s
approval, the audited financial statements.

To recommend, for the Council’s approval, the appointment of
Auditors.

To monitor available cash balances and make
recommendations concerning the liquidation of investments to
ensure that an appropriate level of cash reserves is maintained.

To periodically review internal controls of HKCAAVQ as they
relate to financial and accounting matters.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within FC’s remit as they arise.
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Personnel and Administration Committee (PAC)

Terms of reference

(@)

()

To keep under review the staffing structure of the Secretariat.

To monitor human resources policies and practices of the Hong
Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational
Qualification and to recommend changes when necessary,
paying particular attention to staff development and training, the
remuneration package and matters of staff welfare.

To consider adjustments to the staff salary based on
the outcomes of the annual performance appraisal and
development review.

To keep under review the administrative efficiency of the
Secretariat.

To make recommendations to the Council on such matters
within PAC’s remit as they arise.

Appendix pyEx
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